% o

N

YORK

CEITY QF

COUNCIL @
N\

/

Notice of a public meeting of

Planning Committee A

To: Councillors Cullwick (Chair), Pavlovic (Vice-Chair), Ayre,
D'Agorne, Doughty, Fenton, Fisher, Kilbane, Looker,
Melly and Waudby
Date: Thursday, 2 March 2023
Time: 4.30 pm
Venue: The George Hudson Board Room - 1st Floor West
Offices (F045)
AGENDA
1. Declarations of Interest
At this point in the meeting, Members are asked to declare any
disclosable pecuniary interest or other registerable interest they
might have in respect of business on this agenda, if they have
not already done so in advance on the Register of Interests.
2. Public Participation

At this point in the meeting members of the public who have
registered to speak can do so. Members of the public may speak
on agenda items or on matters within the remit of the committee.

Please note that our registration deadlines have changed to
2 working days before the meeting, in order to facilitate the
management of public participation at meetings. The
deadline for registering at this meeting is 5:00pm on Tuesday 28
February 2023.

To register to speak please visit
www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings to fill in an online
registration form. If you have any questions about the
registration form or the meeting, please contact Democratic
Services. Contact details can be found at the foot of this agenda.



http://www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings

Webcasting of Public Meetings

Please note that, subject to available resources, this meeting will
be webcast, including any registered public speakers who have
given their permission. The meeting can be viewed live and on
demand at www.york.gov.uk/webcasts.

Minutes (Pages 1 - 16)
To approve and sign the minutes of the meetings of the Planning
Committee A held on 2 February 2023.

Plans List
This item invites Members to determine the following planning
application:

J H Shouksmith And Sons Ltd Murton Way (Pages 17 - 66)
York YO19 5GS [22/00015/FULM]

Erection of 1no. three storey office building (use class E) and 2no.
two storey light industrial buildings (use classes E, B2 and B8)
together with parking and new access arrangements following
demolition of existing buildings [Osbaldwick and Derwent Ward]

Planning Appeal Performance and Decisions (Pages 67 - 78)
This report informs Members of planning appeal decisions
determined by the Planning Inspectorate between 1 April and 30
June 2022. Appendix A is a list of the appeals decided, a summary of
each decision is provided in appendix B and a list of outstanding
planning appeals in appendix C.

Urgent Business
Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the
Local Government Act 1972.

Democracy Officer:
Angela Bielby

01904 552599
a.bielby@york.gov.uk


http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts

For more information about any of the following please contact the
Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting:

Registering to speak

Business of the meeting

Any special arrangements

Copies of reports and

For receiving reports in other formats

Contact details are set out above.

This information can be provided in your own language.
EPEAEMNESRHEEREIESS (cantonese)
g2 ©T AT e o (@O AN | (Bengali)

Ta informacja moze by¢ dostarczona w twoim

wiasnym jezyku. (Palish)

Bu bilgiyi kendi dilinizde almaniz miimkiindiir. (Turkish)
G e ) G < T (Ura)
@ (01904) 551550




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda Item 3

City of York Council Committee Minutes

Meeting Planning Committee A

Date 2 February 2023

Present Councillors Cullwick (Chair), Pavlovic (Vice-Chair),

Doughty, Fenton, Fisher, Kilbane, Looker, Waudby,
Daubeney (Substitute for Clir Ayre), Craghill
(Substitute for Cllr D'Agorne) and Lomas (Substitute

for Clir Melly)

Apologies Councillors Ayre, D’Agorne and Melly

In Attendance Becky Eades (Head of Planning and Development
Services)

Jonathan Kenyon (Principal Development
Management Officer)

Sharon Jackson (Development Management
Officer)

Helene Vergereau (Traffic and Highway
Development Manager)

Sandra Branigan (Senior Solicitor)

41.  Declarations of Interest [16.32]

Members were asked to declare, at this point in the meeting, any personal
interests, not included on the Register of Interests, or any prejudicial or
disclosable pecuniary interests they may have in respect of business on the
agenda. The Chair declared an interest in agenda item 4d [Peppermill
Court, Ramsay Close, York 22/02024/FULM] and undertook to withdraw
from the meeting for that item, at which time Clir Pavlovic (Vice Chair)
would Chair the remainder of the meeting. No further interests were
declared.

42.  Public Participation [16.32]

It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak at the meeting
under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme on general matters within
the remit of the Planning Committee A.



Page 2

43. Minutes [16.33]

Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting of Planning Committee A held
on 1 December 2022 be approved and signed as a correct
record.

44.  Plans List [16.33]

Members considered a schedule of reports of the Head of Planning and
Development Services, relating to the following planning applications,
outlining the proposals and relevant policy considerations, and setting out
the views of consultees and officers.

2a) Bootham Park Hospital, Bootham, York YO30 7BY
[21/02108/FULM] [16.33]

Members considered a major full application from Tetlow King Planning
(agent) Enterprise Retirement Living Limited and NHS Property Services
(applicants) for a Change of use, demolition and erection of new buildings
to create residential care community with 172no. residential units and
communal areas, creation of public open space, sports pitches, public right
of way and associated Infrastructure at Bootham Park Hospital Bootham
York.

The Principal Development Management Officer gave an update advising
Members of new conditions 21 (cycle route design) and 22 (east access
works) and variations to conditions 18 (cycle parking) and 20 (travel plan)
and of comments from York Cycle Campaign. It was noted that the report
did not comments from Historic England. A presentation on the application
was then given.

Public Speakers

Brandon Gebka spoke in objection to the application. He noted that the
benefits of it were not of enough significance to demolish a grade 2 listed
buildings and he noted the impact on the historical setting of the site. He
explained that his main concern was the demolition of the estate cottages.
In response to a question from a Member he noted that that he had
expressed strong concern regarding the application.

Ann Weerakoon spoke in objection to the application. She explained that
she represented citizens with an interest in history. She explained that the
building could not be left to deteriorate and he plan to demolish the grade 2
parts if the building were unacceptable and he noted his concerns
regarding the alterations to grade 1 parts of the building. She added that
the new 3 storey building was out of character for the area.



Page 3

Sylvia Graves, a former Ward Manager at Bootham Park Hospital spoke in
objection to the application. She questioned if the new buildings could last
245 years. She then distributed a number of photos of the inside of the
hospital at different points in time. In answer to Member questions she
explained that she had been around the building with the photographer
before the hospital had closed. Asked her view on the hospital’s history of
mental health treatment, there needed to be a nod to the history of the
building.

Peter Martin, the Applicant, spoke in support of the application. He
explained that Bootham Park hospital was one of York’s most historic sites
and he believe that a retirement community was the best use of the site,
where they would have full support for their needs. He noted that there was
evidence that living in an integrated community reduced their need for care.
He acknowledged that there were harms and he noted that the applicants
had worked hard to minimise this.

Peter Martin had a number of colleagues in attendance to answer Member

guestions. They were asked and explained that:

e How the building materials were selected for the site.

e NHS property services was a public body and the site was private. The
area that were to be made public access were listed.

e How parking would be managed.

e Access to car parking would be controlled by a barrier to the south east
of the superintendents lodge.

e Regarding the internal fittings of the grade 1 listed buildings, the whole
site was being laser scanned to record where the fittings were.

e The changes to the ladies wing were explained.

e Regarding the pauper wings, they had worked through a number of
options and had undertaken research on pauper wings. The pauper
wings were not of sufficient merit to retain and it was accepted that there
was harm and which was outweighed by public benefits.

e Members could be assured that the applicant did consider alternatives
and an explanation was given as to why the pauper wings were not
suitable.

e Concerning honouring the history of mental treatment over time, the
scheme would be beneficial to the mental health of residents living
there.

e Concerning making the cycle path 3m wide, there were two 2m lanes
which had been designed by CYC highways.

e It was not known if there was road priority for the cycle path.

e The access to the back of the hospital had been agreed via a legal
agreement.



Page 4

There had been a number of meetings with the CYC Conservation
Architect. The applicant had

The salvaged bricks from the demolished buildings would be used in
landscape treatments.

The applicants had to juggles lots of opinions about the design of the
scheme.

The sports facility would be used and managed by Bootham School
when not in use by the school. There was not provision for changing
rooms and there would be a toilet in the bistro. This would be available
to the public.

The public benefits of the scheme was that there was no extra care.
There had been consultation with housing officers on the gap in
provision for extra care.

Some trees had been removed because of issues with building
foundations.

The rationale for the enclosed courtyard was explained.

[The meeting adjourned from 17.45 to 17.50]

Members then asked officers questions to which they responded that:

Historic England had concerns, with the greatest impact on the pauper
wings as the biggest harm and they also noted the public benefits of the
scheme. The quotes included in the report were taken from the most
recent comments from Historic England.

Concerning conditioning access and public benefits, there were
conditions that secured some elements of this. The council had a an
agreement with the developer which went to Executive in December
2021. It was explained how the legal agreement would be made.
Regarding the statement that there was no extra care provision in York,
this was complicated as care falls into different categories. In terms of
the type of accommodation in the local plan, the scheme was part of the
overall housing need.

The cycle path was part of the cycle network and the highway was on
private land. The legal agreement addressed the part of the cycle path
that was open to the public.

A legal agreement would permanently allow public access and Bootham
School would look after the sports pitches and the administration of their
use. Officers were asked and confirmed that it was not known how this
would be advertised.

The council Conservation architect was asked and clarified:

His concerns that the design was too generic.
The design would detract from the John Carr building and he felt that a
more sensitive approach could have been achieved.



Page 5

e His concerns about the design and height.

e That the harm to heritage assets was at the highest level.

e Regarding York Civic Trusts suggestion that a lighter brick would be
more suitable, it was important that new build elements were different.
The condition for the colour of the brick was noted.

Officers then responded to further questions from officers, to which they

explained:

e How the bricks would contrast with the John Carr building and chapel.
This was included in Condition 14.

e The conditions in relation to the board room and preservation of the
subscription boards. The features of the John Carr building were
preserved via the listed building consent.

e The public benefit was that the scheme contributed to housing supply
and as there was a limited amount of that housing it had been given a
high level of weight. There was a shortfall of accessible sports provision
in the ward and this also given a high level of weight. There was also an
investment of £2million for landscaping.

e There would need to be a road safety audit for cycle priority and the
cycle access to the NHS site was not in the control of the applicant.

¢ Reference was made to the block plan of the John Carr building to show
how internal aspects of the building were being preserved.

e The CEMP condition included details on deliveries.

e Public access to the café could be conditioned.

Following debate, ClIr Fenton proposed the officer recommendation to
approve the application subject to referral to the Secretary of State and
subject to the below new conditions 21 (cycle route design) and 22 (east
access works), variations to conditions 18 (cycle parking) and 20 (travel
plan) and an additional condition relating to the café having public access
at all times during the hours of operation, retained for the lifetime of the
café with the wording of the condition to be agreed by the Chair and Vice
Chair. This was seconded by Clir Daubeney. Following a vote with 8 in
favour of the motion and 3 against, it was:

Resolved: That the application be approved following referral to the
Secretary of State and subject to the below new conditions 21
(cycle route design) and 22 (east access works) and variations
to conditions 18 (cycle parking) and 20 (travel plan) and an
additional condition relating to the café having public access at
all times during the hours of operation, retained for the lifetime
of the café with the wording of the condition to be agreed by the
Chair and Vice Chair.

New condition 21 — Cycle route design



Page 6

The cycle route, as shown on the approved landscaping drawings shall be
made available for public use prior to first occupation of the development
hereby permitted. The facility shall be constructed to adoptable standards
and its final design shall be subject to a Road Safety Audit (RSA). Details
of the final design (following any variations required by the RSA) are shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To secure the public benefits of the scheme which contribute to
the justification of granting planning permission, in the interests of
promoting sustainable travel and the character and appearance of the area
in accordance with NPPF sections 9 and 12.

New condition 22 - East access works

The development hereby permitted shall not come into use until the
following highway works (which definition shall include works associated
with any Traffic Regulation Order required as a result of the development,
signing, lighting, drainage and other related works) have been carried out in
accordance with details which shall have been previously submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, or arrangements
entered into which ensure the same.

Works required - the footpath as proposed on hard landscape drawing
1777-LANP-ZZ-DR-LA-1202 shall be extended to continue and connect
into the footpath along Union Terrace to the east of the site.

Reason: To provide a suitable and inclusive access for pedestrians in
accordance with section 9 of the NPPF.

Variations to conditions

Condition 18 — Cycle parking
Include requirement that provision subject to Council approval and that
spaces for staff be covered.

Condition 20 — Travel Plan
Insert specific measure to be proactive in seeking to accommodate car club
parking spaces on-site.

Reason:

I.  Itis recommended that permission be granted. This is a large and
complex site which requires a new use. The scheme has been
robustly informed by Heritage Appraisals that provide an
understanding of significance of the heritage assets affected and on



Page 7

balance allow for redevelopment whilst avoiding harm on areas of
highest significance. The public benefits of the proposed new uses
for the site also weigh in favour of the scheme as does the
enhancement of the existing landscape in terms of its recreational
value and provision of public access.

ii.  The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
requires that special regard shall be had to the desirability of
preserving listed buildings or their settings or any features of special
architectural or historic interest which they possess, and special
attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing
the character or appearance of conservation areas. When applying
the requirements of the Act and NPPF paragraphs 201 and 202, the
harm is necessary to achieve the public benefits of the scheme,
which outweigh the substantial harm and justify granting consent.
Technical matters relating to other material considerations can be
addressed through planning conditions.

iii.  Conditions are recommended to ensure that the facilities and
amenities proposed are provided in accordance with the approved
scheme, before first occupation of the residential accommodation
proposed and occupancy is restricted to those in need of care, in
accordance with the submission documents. Such conditions are
necessary to deliver the public benefits that have been identified to
make the application acceptable overall.

Iv. Referral to the Secretary of State is required prior to determination
because the Amenity Societies have objected to the application (as
required by the Arrangements for Handling Heritage Applications
Direction 2021).

2a) NHS Property Services Limited, Bootham Park Hospital,
Bootham, York YO30 7BY [21/02109/LBC]

Members considered a listed building consent application from Enterprise
Retirement Living Ltd and NHS Property Services Ltd for the Demolition,
including Pauper Wings and curtilage buildings, internal and external
alterations and new buildings in association with change of use to
residential care community. Associated external works at NHS Property
Services Limited Bootham Park Hospital Bootham York.

Cllr Fenton proposed the officer recommendation to approve the
application subiject to referral to the Secretary of State and subject to an
additional condition for there to be an acknowledgement to the history of



Page 8

the buildings to be a publicly accessible place. This was seconded by Clir
Daubeney. Following a vote with 8 in favour of the motion and 3 against, it

was:

Resolved: That the application be approved following referral to the

Secretary of State and subject to an additional condition for
there to be an acknowledgement to the history of the site to be
a publicly accessible place, the working of which to be
delegated to officers.

Reason:

The Bootham Park Hospital buildings the subject of this application
have been vacant since 2017. At that stage the Council did
investigate re-use of the site, which was decided against due to high
costs and significant risks associated with restoring and developing
listed buildings. It is noted that the Council’s preferred option for
redevelopment included demolition of Grade II, development to the
north of the site and to the east of the Chapel. The applicants were
successful in bidding for the site, only at a second round of bidding,
after the initial sale failed in 2019.

The scheme for reuse of the site does lead to harm to certain
heritage assets. NPPF advice is that, where substantial harm has
been identified, consent should be refused unless such harm is
necessary to achieve substantial public benefits that outweigh the
harm. The identified harm and public benefits of the scheme are set
out below. Officer's recommendation is that in this case the harm is
necessary to deliver the substantial benefits that justify the granting of
consent.

Identified harm -

Substantial harm due to demolition of part of the Grade Il listed
former pauper wings.

Less than substantial harm to setting of the Grade Il listed Chapel
A low level of harm to the conservation area due to tree loss, offset
due to proposed tree planting which includes semi-mature trees.
Low level of harm due to replacement of estate cottages with
development of larger scale. Impact on setting mitigated due to the
secluded location.

Public Benefits -

Substantial benefits in bringing a complex of listed buildings back into
use which have been vacant since 2015. This includes the sensitive
restoration and re-use of Grade | buildings which are of exceptional



Page 9

Importance.

Significant benefit of restoring the landscape, expanding its capacity
for recreational use and securing public access and ongoing
maintenance.

Restoration of Grade Il boundary railings beneficial.

Provision of specialist accommodation to meet an unmet identified
need, with associated health and well-being facilities, recreational
facilities and provision of care.

Housing delivery on a mostly previously developed site in a
sustainable location.

Securing public access and replacement pedestrian and cycle routes
through the site.

The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
requires that special regard shall be had to the desirability of
preserving listed buildings or their settings or any features of special
architectural or historic interest which they possess, and special
attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing
the character or appearance of conservation areas. When applying
the requirements of the act and NPPF paragraphs 201 and 202, the
harm is necessary to achieve the benefits of the scheme, which
outweigh the harm and justify granting consent.

Referral to the Secretary of State is required prior to determination
because the Amenity Societies have objected to the application (as
required by the Arrangements for Handling Heritage Applications
Direction 2021).

[The meeting adjourned from 19.00 until 19.07].

2a)

Geoff Neal Roofing Factory, Sutton Road, Wigginton, York

[22/01908/0OUTM] [19.07]

Members considered a major outline application from Oliver Neal for the
erection of business incubator units, warehousing and regional training
facility for roofing, biomass and stoves in association with change of use to
Class E with all matters reserved at Geoff Neal Roofing Factory Sutton
Road Wigginton York.

The Head of Planning and Development Services outlined the application
and gave a presentation on the application.

Public Speaker




Page 10

Geoff Neal spoke in support of the application on behalf of the applicant.
He explained that scheme being educational and attracting inward
investment were the reasons for very special circumstances. He explained
that it would provide a centre of regional training for roofing and would be a
beacon for special training. He noted that the application was supported by
the Parish Council and immediate neighbour. He added that the proposal
fitted in with commercial buildings in the area and the existing site was well
screened by hedges and would increase biodiversity of the site.

In response to questions from Members, Geoff Neal explained:

e How the nature of the training would differ to that offered by York
College.

¢ |If the training was sited elsewhere this would be more disruptive.

e There were economic benefits of the scheme to contribute to the very
special circumstances.

e The training centre would develop skills in solar thermal roofing, solar
photovoltaic (PV) roofing, and battery storage. There was no training for
this in the region at present.

Members then asked Officer a number of questions to which they

confirmed that:

e The 2005 draft Local Plan considered the site as green belt.

e They had not consulted with economic development colleagues as the
site was not allocated as am employment site.

e There were very special circumstances and these were taken on
balance.

e They could not say that all the buildings were single storey as the plans
were indicative.

Cllr Waudby proposed the officer recommendation to refuse the
application. This was seconded by ClIr Fenton. Following a vote with 8 in
favour of the motion and 3 against, it was:

Resolved: That the application be refused.

Reason:

I.  The identified harm to the Green Belt is that the proposals are
inappropriate development, which is, by definition harmful.

ii.  No further harm has been identified that cannot be reasonably
mitigated through the use of planning conditions.

iii.  The three overarching objectives of the NPPF in achieving



Vi.

Vii.

viii.

Page 11

sustainable development are economic, social, and environmental.
The objective being to secure net gains across each objective.

The economic objective is to help build a strong, responsive, and
competitive economy, by ensuring that sufficient land of the right
types is available in the right places and at the right time to support
growth, innovation, and improved productivity; and by identifying and
coordinating the provision of infrastructure.

The proposed development will supplement the existing warehouse
use on site and provide opportunities for purpose formed training
space where craft trades can be taught in classrooms with workshop
space.

The site is currently in the general extent of the Green Belt. The site
specifics have been documented in Annex 4 to the Topic Paper 1
Addendum (page 7 onwards), which provides relevance to land
around the B1363 highway (Sutton Road to York Road) has
concluded this location serves a green belt function, and it is
necessary to keep the land permanently open to safeguard the
countryside from encroachment. As such is not identified through the
emerging local plan process as one suitable to contributing towards
meeting development needs over the emerging plan period.
Therefore, the proposed use is not compliant with the mix of uses
identified as suitable for the site in the strategic allocation contained
in polices SS1.

The scheme does not conflict with the social and environmental
objectives, noting that mitigation can be secured through planning
condition.

Taking into account the objectives in the NPPF, the level of identified
Green Belt harm and the economic benefits of the scheme very
special circumstances existing in this case do not clearly outweigh
the harm.

[The Chair left the meeting at 19.37].

[The meeting adjourned from 19.37 to 19.43].



Page 12

2a) Peppermill Court, Ramsay Close, York YO31 8SS
[22/02024/FULM] [19.43]

Cllr Pavlovic (Vice Chair), chaired the remainder of the meeting following
the withdrawal of Clir Cullwick (Chair). Cllr Waudby proposed ClIr Fenton
as Vice Chair of the Committee. This was seconded by ClIr Fisher.
Following a unanimous vote in favour, CllIr Fenton was appointed as Vice
Chair for the remainder of the meeting.

Members considered a major full application from York St John University
for the Erection of 3-storey student accommodation with associated
landscaping at Peppermill Court, Ramsay Close, York. The Principal
Development Management Officer outlined and gave a presentation on the
application.

Public Speakers

Clir Melly lived in the neighbourhood of the application site and spoke in
objection to the application. She supported student accommodation on the
site, but explained that the scheme needed to be well designed. She
explained that residents felt that the scheme was overdevelopment and she
added that it removed existing parking which would have further impacts on
car parking in the area. She explained that there were concerns about
students moving in and out of the accommodation and the impact of noise
on residential amenity. She distributed a photo showing the distance from
the scheme to residential properties.

In answer to questions from Members, Clir Melly explained that:

e Where car parking was being displaced.

e Some students and staff brought cars and there was a loss of parking on
Ramsay Close.

e There was little screening between the scheme and residential houses.

e A number of residents had their living room on the first floor and this
would be impacted by the scheme.

e She was not aware of any respark.

e The permit parking on Ramsay Close was managed by York St John
University.

ClIr Fitzpatrick, Ward Member for Guildhall Ward, spoke on behalf of
residents. She explained that residents were not against the principle of the
accommodation, but they did not believe that enough weight had been
given to the loss of amenity for residents. She suggested that the student
social area would not be a quiet study area. She explained residents
concerns regarding the 3m wall and she suggested an alternative layout.
She noted that as Ward Councillor she wanted to work with the university.



Page 13

In response to Member questions, ClIr Fitzpatrick noted that:

e There was a fair amount of opposition to the application locally.

e Regarding engagement from the university, Cllir Melly had organised a
meeting with residents.

e [With regard to permit parking, the Principal Development Management
Officer demonstrated the R25 and R26 respark areas]

e There was mixed parking in the area.

Nick Coakley (Director of Estates Management & Development at York St
John University) spoke in support as the Applicant. He explained that the
university was enjoying a sustained period of success and that it was
expanding a number of services, including midwifery for which there
needed to be accommodation close to the university. He advised that the
university would be committing sums of money to subsidise rents, which
would be 30-40% below the private market for rates. He added that there
would be no displaced parking and there would be permit only car parking.
He noted that there would be 24/7 staff presence on the site.

Philip Holmes (O’Neill Associates planning consultants and Tom Register
(Ridge & Partners architects) were in attendance with Nick Coakley to
answer Member questions regarding the application. They were asked and
explained that:

e Students moving in and out of the accommodation would be managed
through pre booked arrival times over a number of days. This could be
added to the management strategy in condition 18.

e All parking would be managed by the university using a permit scheme.
Most people that parked on the site were staff and student permits were
based on disability and students such as paramedics and nurses who
were on work placements and needed parking.

e The mitigation in terms of a travel plan would be an adjustment of the
thresholds for permits which may result in car sharing permits or using
park and ride.

¢ An explanation was given on how the layout was reached.

e The accessible rooms were fully adaptable and vehicle use there was a
relatively small number of students with disabilities. This arose following
consultation with their student disability forum.

e There was a staff team working with students and students with
disabilities a room that met their needs.

e The accessible rooms were considered as part of all accommodation on
the estate.

e The reasons for the scattered accessible rooms was explained.

e Engagement with residents was explained and the university would like
to continue to engage with residents.



Page 14

There would be CCTV on the site and the screening around the scheme
had been adjusted following residents views. The university had written
to the landowner of the track of land to the north of the site and they
intended to take over the management of the land.

The quiet social space had been mislabelled on the plan and it would be
a quiet room which would close at 10pm.

The final form of the design had been reached by looking at buffer
distances, massing limitations and a need to pull back from the east of
the site due to the grade 2 listed St Mary’s house. The best design had
been reached within the constraints of the site and balancing the needs
for the university’s growth.

Regarding noise control, the university would start with education and
working together with students and it was explained how this would
operate in practice. It was noted that there was a security lodge on site.
There was a disciplinary process as part of the residency agreement.
The university would consider paying for a residents parking scheme.
Confirmation was given that the university would restart a termly liaison
group meeting with residents in whatever format was considered to be
most effective.

Regarding the maintenance of the buffer strip to the north of the site, the
university had written to the registered owner and was ready to maintain
the buffer strip when it has received permission to do so.

The location of the accessible rooms was explained. The location of
those rooms was been limited because of the constraints around fire.
The number of students that declared they had a disability and had a
blue badge was very small and their needs could be met. It was
explained why the accessible rooms were spread across the
development.

It was confirmed that rooms in block 6 could be rearranged to include
accessible rooms.

[ClIr Fisher left the meeting at 21.02]

The rent for the rooms was 30-40% below market rates (the figure for
which came from the average cost of rooms from their managed portfolio. It
was not a commercial enterprise.

Members then asked further questions to officers. Officers clarified that:

e The wording of condition 1 in relation to accessible rooms could be
delegated to officers.

e Condition 4 covered construction deliveries and a traffic management
plan could be added to this.

e Condition 17 could be amended to add drop off and pick up and a liaison
plan between the university and residents.



Page 15

Following debate, Clir Lomas proposed the officer recommendation to
approve the application subject to amended conditions 1 in relation to
accessible rooms to be delegated to officers, amended condition 4 to
include a traffic management plan could be added to this and amended
condition 17 to include drop off and pick up and a liaison plan between the
university and residents and an additional condition to secure the location
of the accessible rooms. Following a unanimous vote in favour it was:

Resolved: That the application be approved subject to amended
conditions 1, 4 and 17 and an additional condition to secure the
location of the accessible rooms.

Amended Condition 1
To be delegated to officers

Amended condition 4
To include a traffic management plan

Amended condition 17
To include drop off and pick up and a liaison plan between the university
and residents

Additional condition
To secure the location of the accessible rooms.

Reason:

i. The proposed development is acceptable in principle and having
regard to the duty under s66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990, there would be no harm on
designated heritage assets; the setting of the Grade Il listed St Mary’s
student accommodation block to the east.

i. The NPPF requirement is therefore to grant planning permission
unless any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and
demonstrably outweigh the benefits when applying the policies within
the NPPF taken as a whole.

lii. The benefits of the scheme are re-use of a previously developed site,
an improved streetscene along Ramsay Close (including rows of new
street trees as advocated by the NPPF) and the provision of student
accommodation for which there is need, in a building that is targeted
to achieve BREEAM Excellent, in a highly sustainable location where
trips to local amenities and services can be made without the need



Page 16

for private car travel. Whilst trees are proposed to be removed
(including 3 Category B trees) some 100 replacement trees are
proposed and landscaped amenity spaces are proposed for the
building’s future occupants.

iv. The relationship of the proposed buildings to their neighbours are
regarded to be acceptable, there are no conflicts with the NPPF
requirements on the promotion of sustainable travel and no ecology,
flood risk or other technical planning issues that cannot be addressed
by imposing planning conditions. Approval is recommended.

Clir Cullwick, Chair
[The meeting started at 4.30 pm and finished at 9.18 pm].



Page 17 Agenda Iltem 4a

COMMITTEE REPORT

Date: 2 March 2023 Ward: Osbaldwick And Derwent
Team: East Area Parish: Osbaldwick Parish
Council
Reference: 22/00015/FULM
Application at: J H Shouksmith And Sons Ltd Murton Way York YO19 5GS
For: Erection of 1no. three storey office building (use class E) and

2no. two storey light industrial buildings (use classes E, B2 and
B8) together with parking and new access arrangements
following demolition of existing buildings

By: Mr D Shouksmith
Application Type: Major Full Application
Target Date: 9 March 2023

Recommendation: Approve

1.0 PROPOSAL

1.1 The application site is a brownfield site at the junction of Outgang Lane and
Murton Way in the Osbaldwick Industrial Estate.

1.2 The proposal is for the erection of a three-storey office building (use class E)
accessed from Murton Way and 2no. two storey light industrial buildings (use
classes E, B2 and B8) with separate access from Outgang Lane to the north
following demolition of the existing buildings in the southern portion of the site. The
proposal is partly retrospective as much of the demolition has taken place.
Previously the site provided single storey office and warehouse accommodation for
the company JH Shouksmith with access from Murton Way to a surface car park to
the front of the building. To the north of the site are retained modern industrial units.

1.3 The site is largely rectangular in shape bounded by a deep grass verge to the
south to Murton Way with shrubbery and single tree, a mature hedgerow to the west
boundary and wire mesh fence to the east, fronting Outgang Lane. The modern
units to the north have a tree lined frontage to Outgang Lane, set in front of grey
palisade fencing. The site is within the urban area, with the Green Belt boundary on
its western edge. It is within Flood Zone 3a (high risk of flooding).

1.4 The office building would provide a total of 1,181 sq.m gross internal

floorspace, and is intended to be predominantly occupied by Shouksmith as its

regional headquarters. Of this, 859 sq.m would be occupied by Shouksmith’s staff
Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 18

(building service engineers, maintenance and refrigeration teams), being 73% of the
floorspace. The remaining amount, 322 sg.m gross internal floorspace would be
occupied by others.

1.5 The industrial buildings would provide 1,396 sg.m gross internal floorspace.
The proposed site plan shows a single unit at the north of the site and a long
building to the south, separated into 5no. smaller units.

1.6 The office building is designed as a regional headquarters and would have
presence in the street scene by virtue of its scale and design. It would provide
modern, flexible, fully serviced accommodation. The external elevations comprise
masonry with white painted render panels and large glazed curtain walling and
windows. The third storey would be set back behind a parapet wall, with a high
proportion of glazing, and topped with a deep overhanging, low pitched roof.

1.7 The industrial units would be two storeys in height with masonry and profiled
metal cladding with glazed curtain walling and profiled windows.

1.8 The designated office parking would provide 40 car parking spaces and 22
bicycle parking spaces. The new industrial units would have 26 car parking spaces
and a further 20 cycle spaces. The site would be landscaped with native hedgerow
to the Murton Lane frontage and native trees.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

1.13 The following is of relevance:

- On 13.06.2008, planning permission was granted for the erection of 3no. two
storey pitched roof buildings comprising 8no. business units for B1, B2 and B8
uses with associated access, parking, cycle storage and landscaping
(08/00736/FULM). The buildings would be constructed from red multi-facing
brickwork with buff stretcher courses to window heads and sills and have
profiled metal pitched roofs. The three buildings were of similar design with
long sections of glazed windows in horizontal bands. Planning permission not
implemented.

- On 28.10.2010, planning permission was granted to extend the time period of
the above planning permission (10/01698/FULM), however it remains
unimplemented.

- On 25.11.2021, a planning application was withdrawn for 2no. three storey
office buildings (use class E) and 2no. two storey light industrial buildings (use

Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 19

classes B2 and B8) together with parking and new access arrangements
following demoilition of 2no. existing buildings in commercial and light
industrial/storage use (21/00092/FULM). The LPA advised the applicant that
sequential tests were required in relation to the proposed office use (main
town centre use) in an out-of-centre location, and because the development
was in flood zone 3 (high risk of flooding). A revised scheme was submitted
reducing the amount of office space proposed, for which a new application
was required (being the current scheme under consideration).

2.0 POLICY CONTEXT
Planning Policy

2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework was republished in July 2021 (NPPF)
and its planning policies are material to the determination of planning applications.
The NPPF sets out the Government's overarching planning policies. Paragraph 7-11
explains that the purpose of planning is to contribute to achieving sustainable
development. Development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development
plan should be approved without delay. Where there are no relevant development
plan policies or where they are out of date, planning permission should be granted
unless policies in this framework that protect areas or assets of particular
importance provide a clear reason for refusing the development proposed or any
adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF as a whole.

York Local Plan Publication Draft (February 2018)

2.2 The Publication Draft City of York Local Plan 2018 ('2018 Draft Plan’) was
submitted for examination on 25 May 2018. Phase 4 of the hearings was completed
in September 2022. In accordance with paragraph 48 of the NPPF the Draft Plan
policies can be afforded weight according to:

- The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the
preparation, the greater the weight that may be given);

- The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the
less significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be
given); and

- The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the
policies in the previous NPPF published in March 2012. (NB: Under

Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 20

transitional arrangements plans submitted for examination before 24 January
2019 will be assessed against the 2012 NPPF).

2.3 Due to the progress of the plan, those policies without unresolved objections
now carry more weight as the plan is in the last stage of hearings. The Council
Executive meeting of 26 January 2023 approved the commencement of consultation
on the proposals to move forward with the Local Plan adoption process. As such,
where policies are subject to minor or very inconsequential changes, such policies
are now considered to carry significant weight in accordance with paragraph 48 of
the NPPF. Those with more substantial changes, carry little or no weight until post
consultation and the NPPF policies carry precedence.

2.4 The following emerging policies are applicable:

- DP2 Sustainable development

- DP3 Sustainable communities

- R1 Retail hierarchy and sequential approach

- ENV4 Flood risk

- D1 Placemaking

- T1 Sustainable access

- GI2 Biodiversity and access to nature

- Gl4 Trees and hedgerows

- CC1 Renewable and low carbon energy generation and storage
- CC2 Sustainable design and construction of new development

2.5 The evidence base is a material consideration to the determination of planning
applications where applicable. In this case, the City of York Council’s Statement on
Matter 3: Economic Development (Phase 2 Hearings) of the Examination of the York
Local Plan (March 2022) has been referenced.

3.0 CONSULTATIONS

INTERNAL

Forward Planning

3.1 As offices are considered as main town centre uses the applicant should
submit a sequential test for the proposed office floorspace in this out of centre
location. The sequential test should consider all emerging allocations in the Local

Plan. No impact assessment is required.
Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 21

3.2 The emerging Local Plan supports locating development in sustainable
locations. Policy SS1 ‘Delivering Sustainable Growth for York’ encourages making
the best use of previously developed land and directing development to the most
sustainable locations, ensuring access to sustainable modes of transport and a
range of services. The site is well served by public transport (the number 6 route
provides a frequent service along Osbaldwick Lane) and, while it lies outside a ten
minute walk from a local centre, there are range of local shops and services located
within walking distance.

Economic Growth

3.3 The Economic Growth team supports the proposal. J H Shouksmith and Sons
Ltd., are one of York’s oldest employers and have just celebrated their centenary
year, so their confidence in York and the York economy in making this substantial
investment is welcomed. They are investing in the future by removing an outdated
building and replacing it with a large, flexible and modern facility that will be to the
benefit of both existing and new employees, as well as other businesses who will be
co-located there as either start-ups or companies aiming to expand.

3.4 The availability of suitable employment space is crucial to ensuring that York
remains a great place to do business, and this proposal replaces a dated building
with modern, quality office space and desirable units. Anecdotal evidence through
business engagement and recent office/industrial availability data provided by Co-
Star demonstrates a strong demand for business accommodation across York,
especially industrial units.

3.5 The location is sustainable, there are a range of means of accessing the site by
non-car modes. It will provide for a wide range of new employment opportunities to
meet the needs of local and incoming employers, whilst balancing market
requirements with sustainable objectives. Given the shortage of industrial
accommodation across York and the limited supply in construction, the proposed
development will provide much needed business accommodation to enable
business start-ups, support business growth and create jobs for local people.

Design, Conservation and Sustainable Development (Landscape architect)

3.6 No objection to the proposed removal of three trees within the site due to the
extent of the proposed tree planting and landscaping. Supports the revised

Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 22

landscaping scheme following revisions to increase the native mix, include the
wildflower meadow and include a native hedgerow to the frontage and a greater
variety of trees to provide a more natural appearance in keeping with the rural edge
location. It is important that tree planting is incorporated into car parks and
courtyards to provide shade in the summer months, to reduce urban heat island
effect (and heating of cars) and also to ‘slow the flow’ and encourage the sounds
and sights of nature into the working environment for health and wellbeing. Trees
should have adequate soil volumes, which are likely to include soil cell systems
below the block paving. Conditions are recommended.

Design, Conservation and Sustainable Development (Ecologist)

3.7 The site offers potential for nesting birds. Precautionary methods will be
needed to ensure active nests are not destroyed during vegetation clearance. The
hedgerow along the western boundary provides suitable habitat for foraging bats
and the green corridors within the arable land to the west have the potential to be
used by a range of light sensitive species. A sensitive lighting scheme should be
produced. Due to the close proximity of Osbaldwick Meadow SINC candidate (to the
iImmediate west), the provision of a CEMP (biodiversity) is considered appropriate.
Overall, no objections to the proposed development subject to conditions.

Highways Network Management

3.8 The proposed car and cycle parking provision meets CYC parking standards.
Amendments were sought and points of clarification. Officers concluded that the
final revised drawings now show correctly the lay-by and tie-in with the existing
western kerb line of Outgang Lane. An adjustment to the vehicle swept path
drawings result in less deflection and the offside front not encroaching into the
opposite lane. The net cumulative residual traffic impact of the proposed
development on the highway is not significant. Therefore, a travel plan is not
required. Earlier issues relating to adopted highway have been resolved with the
proposed site plan showing the buildings not on the adopted highway and inward
opening doors for the office building on its eastern elevation.

3.9 A series of standard conditions are advised to be attached to any planning
permission, plus a condition to secure a Construction Traffic Management Plan.

Flood Risk Management

Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 23

3.10 With regards to river flooding, this ‘less vulnerable’ development is identified
as being in Environment Agency (EA) high risk Flood Zone (FZ) 3a and in
accordance with the Council’s Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA) as being in
FZ3a(i) i.e. developed areas with up to a 1 in 25 or greater annual probability of
flooding in any year (4% or greater) and therefore the Exception Test must be
passed.

3.11 The site-specific ground investigation found ground conditions to be
predominantly dense clay with ground water found at a depth of 1m below ground
level and FRM confirm infiltration methods will not work on this site.

3.12 The FRMT have sought revised schemes to ensure the buildings were
suitably safe and flood resilient in Flood Zone 3a and would not displace flood water
outside of the site. The final drainage scheme shows foul water being connected to
the existing 225mm diameter public combined sewer in Outgang Lane and surface
water connected to the culverted watercourse within the verge in Outgang Lane with
appropriate attenuation up to and including the 1 in 100year + 40% climate change
event at a rate no greater than 17.4 (seventeen point four) litres per second. This is
now supported. Standard drainage conditions are advised.

Public Protection

3.13 Public Protection has reviewed all environmental impacts (noise, light, air
guality, contaminated land and dust). They report no objections subject to the
attachment of conditions relating to agreeing details of all plant and machinery to be
installed due to the proximity of residential units 65m from the site, submission of a
Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) and standard land
contamination conditions. Also proposed are conditions to secure electric vehicle
recharging points; two for the offices and two for the industrial units plus an
additional 5% passive provision, and details of external lighting proposed.

EXTERNAL

Yorkshire Water

3.14 Advised that the October 2022 Foul and Surface Water Drainage Strategy is
acceptable. Foul water will discharge to public combined water sewer, sub-soll

conditions do not support the use of soakaways and a culverted watercourse exists
near to the site to which the surface water connection is proposed, and is subject to

Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 24

agreement with the Local Land Drainage Authority. They have advised that drainage
details could be conditioned.

Environment Agency

3.15 The Environment Agency report no objection subject to the inclusion of a
condition preventing any raising of ground levels within Flood Zone 3 and for all
excess spoil to be removed from the site. A further condition is advised that the
development shall be undertaken in accordance with the submitted detailed flood
risk assessment and recommendations.

Foss Internal Drainage Board

3.16 The Board has assets in the wider area in the form of Outgang Drain and
Osbaldwick Beck. These watercourses are known to be subject to high flows during
storm events. There also appears to be an ordinary watercourse nearby which is not
maintained by the Board and will be the responsibility of the riparian owner to
maintain.

3.17 Further drainage details are required including where the applicant is
proposing to discharge surface water into and where the point of connection is on a
plan. Details, including photographic evidence that the watercourse is free flowing.
Discharge rates are also required, including evidence of operational connection by
dye testing or CCTV and means of flow control devices. Conditions are advised.

Osbaldwick Parish Council

3.18 The Parish Council are supportive of the aim of Shouksmiths to redevelop their
site. However they object on design grounds due to the impact on the rural frontage
of Murton Way in a very prominent position at the entrance to Osbaldwick and on
the journey to Murton. The buildings are too big, completely out of character with the
area and inadequately screened to fit in with the hedge line running from
Osbaldwick to Murton. They consider the reference to university style buildings has
no relevance to this site. The proposals harm the semi-rural nature of the Link Road.
The LPA should aspire to Heritage House on the opposite corner as reference for
the current proposals and as something to aspire to with a more traditional red-brick
design with an appropriate hedgerow / tree boundary treatment. There should be no
vehicular entrance or car parking to the front of the building.

Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 25

Murton Parish Council

3.19 Murton Parish Council would prefer the development to offer a building more
suited to the rural frontage of Murton Way and would point to the offices opposite,
Heritage House, as being more traditional and compatible. Whilst not wishing to
stifle the redevelopment of the corner site, the replacement of the original low level
building with a three storey frontage is too much, especially in the current design.

4.0 REPRESENTATIONS

Publicity

4.1 One neighbouring business has expressed concerns about whether the
proposals result in a loss of 6 parking spaces for existing tenants immediately to the
north of the application site and proposals for joining the existing development with
that proposed and amalgamation of the new development with existing.

5.0 APPRAISAL
KEY ISSUES
5.1 The key issues are considered to be:

- Principle of development (including proposed town centre use in out of centre
location)

- Location in flood zone 3 - high risk of flooding

- Drainage

- Design

- Highways impact

- Ecology

- Sustainable construction

APPRAISAL

Principle of development

5.2 The application site comprises of previously developed land (brownfield site) in
an industrial estate on the outskirts of Osbaldwick. In late 2021, the existing single
storey office blocks and older warehouses were largely demolished with only a small

Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 26

section of the offices retained on the west boundary of the site. The redevelopment
of the site is for a greater quantum of development. The existing buildings (prior to
demolition) provided 705 sq.m gross internal offices space, with replacement
comprising 1,181 sg.m gross internal office space (increase of 476 sq.m) and 1,050
sgm gross internal light industrial floorspace to 1,396 sg.m (increase of 346 sq.m).

Policy

5.3 The NPPF 2021 sets a presumption in favour of achieve sustainable
development through three overarching interdependent objectives; economic, social
and environmental. Economic objectives include the requirement to build a strong,
responsive and competitive economy by ensuring the right type of land is available
to support growth, innovation and improved productivity (para. 8). For decision
taking this means approving development proposals which accord with an up-to-
date development plan without delay, and where there is no relevant development
plan policies, or they policies are out of date, grant planning permission unless the
application of policies in the NPPF that protect areas of particular importance
provide a clear reason for refusing the development proposed or any adverse
impact of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits when
assessed against the policies as a whole (para. 11).

5.4 Section 6 of the NPPF on building a strong, competitive economy states that
planning decisions should help create the conditions in which businesses can invest,
expand and adapt. Significant weight should be placed on the need to support
economic growth and productivity, taking into account both local business needs
and wider opportunities for development (para 83). Planning decisions should
recognise the specific location requirements of different sectors.

5.5 Annex 2 Glossary defines ‘main town centre uses’ to include offices. Section 7
seeks to ensure the vitality of town centres being at the heart of communities, and
through defining a network and hierarchy of town centres and promoting their long-
term vitality and viability. Paragraph 87 and 88 state that local planning authorities
should apply a sequential test to planning applications for main town centre uses
which are neither in an existing centre not in accordance with an up-to-date plan.
Main town centre uses should be located in town centres, then in edge of centre
locations; and only if suitable sites are not available (or expected to become
available within a reasonable period), should out of centre sites be considered.
When considering edge of centre and out of centre proposals, preference should be
given to accessible sites which are well connected to the town centre.

Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 27

5.6 Section 11 supports the use of previously-developed land while safeguarding
and improving the environment. Planning decisions should give substantial weight to
the value of using suitable brownfield land within settlements for homes and other
identified needs (para 120). Planning decisions should support development that
makes efficient use of land, taking into account, need, type of development local
market conditions and viability, availability and capacity for infrastructure and
services, the desirability of maintaining an area’s prevailing character, promoting
regeneration and change, and securing well-designed, attractive and healthy places.

5.7 The Publication Draft Local Plan (2018) policy R1 ‘retail hierarchy and
sequential approach’ requires an impact assessment for main town centre uses over
200sqg.m outside the city, district or local centres. A sequential test is required, but
an impact assessment is no longer required for out-of-centre office development
with the NPPF 2021 requirements takes precedence in relation to out-of-date policy
R1.

5.8 Planning Practice Guidance on Town Centres and Retail explains that the use
of the sequential test should recognise that certain main town centre uses have
particular market and locational requirements which mean that they may only be
accommodated in specific locations. Robust justification will need to be provided
where this is the case, and land ownership does not provide such a justification
(paras 011 and 012).

5.9 The evidence base document to the Examination of the Local Plan Phase 2
Hearings: Matter 3 Economic Development is of relevance (March 2022) in
providing an update since the publication of the 2018 Publication Draft Plan. It
updates the employment land requirements (Table 4.1) noting that since 2017, there
has been changes in supply, including a loss of 42,815 sqm office floorspace, and
updating the table with a corresponding increase in office floorspace (formerly Bla)
requirements 2021-2038 to 149,898 sgm. The Paper confirms that the approach will
be to delete references to the old use classes prior to adoption of the Local Plan, but
to retain the development types within the assessment and site allocations.
Throughout the Paper, the changes to the Use Classes Order (to subsume various
classes into a more generic E Class) raises concerns over office supply through
conversions, and tools are suggested to prevent further loss of office space such as
restricting conversions to other employment uses via condition or a targeted Article
4 Direction in parts of York to remove permitted development rights.

Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 28

Assessment

5.10 The applicant has submitted a sequential test of alternative sites, both
allocated sites in the Publication Draft Local Plan and other development
sites/opportunities/vacant buildings. Key points in the introduction of the Sequential
Test are that JH Shouksmiths & Sons was founded in 1820 and is a successful
building services engineering firm with over 70 staff in York and Leeds. Staff
comprise engineers and foremen who mainly work on site but also require office
space, plus some home-based staff including the property team. The Company is
successful and growing, with an annual turnover of over circa £12m in 2021 and this
is forecast to increase to £17m in the next few years, requiring a growth in staff.
Shouksmith has developed the Osbaldwick Industrial Estate since purchasing the
site in 1964 and created a thriving commercial estate providing employment and
economic benefits. They remain the owners and landlords of the industrial estate. It
is also home to Shouksmith’s office headquarters, until partial demolition of the low
grade 1960s pre-fabricated office buildings last year. These buildings were retained
long after their short-term lifespan and were constrained in size and layout. The
proposed redevelopment will provide a new three-storey office building, providing a
suitable high quality headquarters for this key York company. Also proposed are two
two-storey light industrial buildings. It is a major investment of a successful York-
based business.

5.11 Of the proposed gross internal floorspace of 1,181 sgm, Shouksmiths will
occupy 859 sgm (73%) with the remaining 322 sg.m initially to be leased to
Shouksmith’s fire and security contractor, which will provide further operation
efficiencies for the business and help secure the viability of the proposed
development. It may also provide further space for Shouksmiths to expand into in
the future.

5.12 Itis a brownfield site, in an industrial estate that the company has developed,
and the proposal replaces outdated accommodation, no longer fit for purpose, with
high quality building worthy of accommodating headquarters. It supports the
development of a key York business, consolidate operations at its long-established
headquarters, supports local business and growth in the wider economy. The NPPF
at paragraph 83 requires significant weight to be placed on the need to support
economic growth and productivity, taking into account local business needs, and
that substantial weight should be given to the value of using suitable brownfield land
within settlements for other identified needs (para 120). It is considered that this
weighting should be justifiably applied here.

Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 29

5.13 The site is in an accessible and sustainable location. Being a brownfield site
in an industrial estate, commercial uses would only be considered appropriate. The
submitted assessment of alternative sites is considered comprehensive and aligns
with the separate sequential test undertaken by the LPA. The alternative allocated
sites identified which are reasonably available and of sufficient size being Annamine
Nurseries (site E11) and Northminster Business Park (site ST19). York Central ST1
and Poppleton Garden Centre (site E16) are discounted as not reasonably
available. The other sites are all also out-of-centre and therefore not sequentially
preferable. The application site has locational advantages in allowing Shouksmith to
remain at a site which has been its headquarters for over half a century, and for
which they remain as owners and landlords to the other commercial uses.

5.14 An assessment has also been made on the full range of available and
marketed employment sites. Reference to current marketing information by the LPA,
and with reference to the submitted sequential test, it is agreed that there is very
limited immediately available alternatives: Moorside at Monks Cross Drive and
Redwood House, Northminster Business Park. However the available office
floorspace at Moorside is spread across different parts of the building and Redwood
House requires upgrade; it is not Grade A office space with laboratory facilities at
ground floor. Neither meet Shouksmith’s aspirations and therefore are not realistic
alternatives.

5.15 The reports provided by the Economic Growth Team summarise the central
York office market as having very low vacancy levels (4%). There is very little office
development in the pipeline and only 1 office sale recorded in the last 12 months.
The York Fringe sub-market contains about the same size of office floorspace as
central York. Whilst the vacancy rate has increased, it remains low at 4.3%. There is
no office development in the pipeline and no office buildings under construction.
There have been 4 sales in the last 12 months. (Make it York, January 2022).

5.16 Considering Shouksmith’s operational requirements, desire for a Headquarters
building, the lack of reasonable alternatives that would meet their requirements, the
very low vacancy levels of office development across the city, the lack of significant
office development in the pipeline over the short-term, the sustainable brownfield
site proposed, and significant locational advantages in an industrial site they have
developed, it is concluded there are no sequentially preferable sites, and the
sequential test is passed for the office element of the scheme,

Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 30

5.17 The replacement of an outdated office building with modern, high quality office
space at an established and business location will not undermine the principle of
ensuring the viability and vitality of town centres, which is the overarching aim of
planning policy relating to main town centre uses.

Flooding and drainage

Policy

5.18 NPPF paragraph 154(a) states that new development should be planned for
in ways that avoid increased vulnerability to the range of impacts arising from
climate change. Paragraph 159 states that inappropriate development in areas at
risk of flooding should be avoided by directing development away from areas at
highest risk (whether existing or future). Where development is necessary in such
areas, the development should be made safe for its lifetime without increasing flood
risk elsewhere. Paragraph 162 explains that the aim of the sequential test is to steer
new development to areas with the lowest risk of flooding from any source.
Development should not be allocated or permitted if there are reasonably available
sites appropriate for the proposed development in areas with a lower risk of flooding.

5.19 The Council’s strategic flood risk assessment requires the development to
pass an exception test to demonstrate that the development would provide wider
sustainability benefits to the community that outweigh flood risk and that the
development will be safe for its lifetime taking into account the vulnerability of uses,
and that it does not increase flood risk elsewhere.

5.20 Development should only be permitted when within the site the most
vulnerable development is located in lowest flood risk, development must be
appropriately flood resilient, it incorporates sustainable drainage systems where
appropriate, any residual risk can be safely managed and there are safe access and
escape routes as part of an agreed emergency plan (NPPF para 167).

5.21 Policy ENV4 in the Publication Draft Local Plan has been revised for the new
consultation ‘main modifications’ in the January 2023 papers to be fully in
accordance with the NPPF 2021. The changes include specific reference to the
sequential test in the policy rather than the accompanying text for clarity. The weight
of policy ENV4 at this stage in the Publication Draft 2018 is now low, but the NPPF
2021 and NPPG provides context and is against which the application has been
assessed.

Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 31

Assessment

5.22 The applicant has submitted sequential and exception tests in support of the
proposals. The sequential testing of the site on flood risk grounds, with development
directed to sites at lower risk of flooding is not restricted to office use (unlike the
town centre use sequential test) but include the whole of the proposed development
including the light industrial element. Referencing the sites identified in the town
centre use sequential test, both Annamine Nurseries (E11) and Land at
Northminster Business Park (ST19) are sequentially preferable being in flood zone
1. The other sites which are immediately available which were previously identified
(Moorside and Redwood House) were discounted as not being realistic alternatives
for Shouksmith’s aspirations and could not accommodate the industrial element.
However, it is not agreed with the reasoning of JOC consultants in their discounting
of sites E11 and ST19 in terms of the flood risk sequential test; these sites remain
sequentially preferable alternatives in the LPA’s opinion. ST19 is identified for B1,
B2 and B8 industrial uses in the Publication Draft Plan (2018) — as the proposal, and
the need for a new access is not a reason to discount E11 in terms of the sequential
test as this has not yet been deemed necessary or unacceptable.

5.23 Nevertheless, consideration is given to the implications for not permitting
redevelopment of the existing brownfield site previously occupied by Shouksmith’s
offices. Significant weight is given to previously developed land, of the visual blight
to the area by not permitting redevelopment, that this site is only one of three sites
potentially suitable for the development proposed, and the lack of office
development in the immediate pipeline (York Central being the major site but on
which office development is some years away to being delivered). Substantial
weight is given to the support for an existing established business in York
developing their headquarters here and investing constructing a Grade A office
development and the opportunities that brings to the city. Weight is also given to the
previous occupation of the site by Shouksmiths, their ownership of the industrial
estate, their desire to remain on the site and their long history in York. The LPA
consider on these grounds that providing the development is considered sustainable
development, and that it can be made safe and not increase flood risk elsewhere,
these considerations weigh strongly in the planning balance.

5.24 Consideration is therefore given to the exception test and site-specific flood

risk assessment: whether the buildings and occupiers will be safe in a flood event,
that flood waters would not be displaced onto others, and suitable drainage will be in

Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 32

place and whether there are sustainability benefits to the wider community that
outweigh flood risk.

5.25 The buildings and the occupiers should be safe in a flood event. The source
of any flooding from rainfall would occur as a result of surface water unable to
percolate quickly or from Osbaldwick Beck which runs parallel and south of Murton
Way. Overland flows are not likely to be high velocity (say unlike a main river).
Surface water drainage will be contained and released at suitable rates from an
attenuation tank beneath the office car park. Permeable paving is shown in the car
park and large areas of soft landscaping. Flow rates for foul and surface water
drainage is as approved by the LPA’s flood risk engineer. Finished floor levels will
be at 13.050m AOD (above the 1:100 year event) and a car park edge detail has
been provided with an upstand to minimise the risk of surface water being displaced
onto neighbouring land.

5.26 The agent has also confirmed a range of design treatments for flood resilience
of the building which can be conditioned. The proposed development includes
suitable drainage, will be flood resilient and safe for occupiers, and surface water
will not be displaced onto other. Any residual risk is outweighed by the significant
sustainable benefits of the development in creating local employment opportunities
and developing an existing brownfield site in a sustainable location within the urban
area. The exception test is passed.

Design and landscaping

Policy

5.27 The NPPF at section 12 states that the creation of high quality, beautiful and
sustainable buildings and places is fundamental to planning. Planning decisions
should ensure that developments will function well and add to the overall quality the
area, be visually attractive as a result of god architecture, layout and appropriate
and effective landscaping, is sympathetic to local character including the
surrounding built environment and landscape setting, establish a strong sense of
place with building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and
distinctive places to work, and create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible
with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users.

5.28 The Publication Draft Local Plan emerging policies of relevance include:

Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 33

- DP2 Sustainable development enhance the special character of the city by
ensuring development is in acceptable locations, ensure sustainable design
techniques are incorporated in new developments.

- DP3 Sustainable communities requires development to deliver high quality
design, appropriate density, layout and scale whilst ensuring appropriate
buildings materials are used, with development relating well to the surrounding
area.

- D1 Placemaking development should enhance and complement the character
of landscape by planting and boundary treatment and ensuring appropriate
building materials are used and demonstrates the use of best practice in
contemporary urban design and placemaking with parking integrated within
the development so as not to dominate the street scene. Buildings should
have active frontages to streets.

5.29 These policies have not been subject to significant change in the January
2023 papers for the new consultation ‘main modifications’ to be commenced in
February 2023 in relation to the parts of the policies that apply to the proposals. As
such they are considered to carry significant weight.

Assessment

5.30 The site is at the entrance to Osbaldwick Industrial Estate on Murton Way with
access from Osbaldwick Link Road. To the west is Osbaldwick Village, separated
from the Industrial Estate by open fields, designated as Osbaldwick Meadow
candidate SINC to the immediate west. To the east is open countryside, separating
Osbaldwick from the village of Murton. Murton Way is a typical rural road, lined with
predominantly native Hawthorn hedges, which includes hedgerow trees such as
Oak and Ash. To the south are industrial units along Osbaldwick Link Road up to its
junction with Hull Road with Grimston Bar Park and Ride to the south beyond.

5.31 The site now comprises cleared brownfield land within the urban area. There
is minimal tree planting to the front of the site including a young Rowan, multi-
stemmed semi-mature Ash and a Sycamore. There is a deep hedgerow along the
western boundary.

5.32 Outgang Lane is a functional street in an industrial area. The office block on
the opposite side of the road to the application site is fronted by a car park which
abuts the back edge of the highway pavement. This serves to illustrate the negative
impact of development when there is no provision for planting, especially trees.

Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 34

Generally Outgang Lane comprises functional and utilitarian architecture. The street
scene is dominated by galvanised steel palisade fencing, vehicles, and industrial
activity.

5.33 The proposed building reflects its intended use; as a headquarters office
building for a well-established company. It will have greater presence in the street
scene and industrial estate than previously, but this is considered a positive
attribute. The building will be three storeys in height and at the entrance to the
estate on this junction of Murton Way with the estate, this is considered to be
appropriate. The third storey is stepped back, is light and contrasting in appearance
with a higher proportions of windows to the lower storeys, and set beneath a low
pitched roof. This will reduce the massing of the building in an area of generally two
storey hight buildings.

5.34 Osbaldwick Industrial Estate is characterised by a range of office and
industrial building designs and materials. The use of white rendered panels and
facing bricks is considered appropriate for the gateway building and is considered of
high quality design.

5.35 Atthe rear (north) of the site, two light industrial buildings providing 6 units of
varying size are proposed to match the existing units in scale, appearance and
materials. They square off the existing units and are accessed off a new entrance
from Outgang Lane. They are two storeys in height with shallow pitched roofs with
masonry at ground level and profiled cladding above.

5.36 The landscaping has been amended since submission to propose a range of
trees planted along both street frontages with a native hedge to Murton Way
interspersed with lime trees, silver birch, crab apple and field maple to provide some
screening, soften the building, integrate with the wider rural landscape and increase
biodiversity. Behind the hedging will be a wildflower meadow with benches for office
workers to use. Within the car park in the courtyard to the offices and new industrial
units will be several trees to provide shade and green outlook for office workers. The
proposed landscaping will soften the built form and help integrate it into the
landscape through the significant tree planting, native hedge planting and provision
of car park within the centre of the site rather than having any vehicles parked to the
front.

5.37 The scheme is considered to be high quality design, suitable as a
headquarters building which provides a gateway entrance to the estate and which

Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 35

will lift the area, and which is softened by a range of native planting and trees to help
assimilate it into its rural context to the east on the urban edge of Osbaldwick.

Highways impact

Policy

5.38 Section 9 of the NPPF promotes sustainable transport and encourages its
early consideration in development proposals so that potential impacts of
development on transport networks can be addressed and opportunities to promote
walking, cycle and public transport use are identified and pursued. The patterns of
movement, streets, parking and other considerations are integral to the design of
schemes to contribute to making high quality spaces. Significant development
should be focused in sustainable locations, limiting the need to travel and offering a
genuine choice of transport modes. Safe and suitable access to the site must be
achieved for all users.

5.39 Emerging policy DP2 ‘Sustainable development’ in the Publication Draft Local
Plan (2018) sets overarching principles and includes the desire to deliver a
fundamental shift in travel by prioritising and improving strategic public transport,
cycle and pedestrian networks and managing travel demand and modal choice.

5.40 Emerging policy T1 ‘Sustainable Access’ supports development that
minimises the need to travel and provides safe, suitable and attractive access for all
transport users to and within it. Development proposals should demonstrate that
there is safe and appropriate access to the adjacent adopted highway, and they
create sage and secure layouts for motorised vehicles, cyclists and pedestrians that
minimise conflict.

5.41 These emerging local plan policies have not been subject to significant
change in the January 2023 papers for the new consultation ‘main modifications’ to
be commenced in February 2023 in relation to the parts of the policies that apply to
the proposals. As such they are considered to carry significant weight.

Assessment

5.42 The existing access to the offices is taken from Murton Way with the existing
adjacent industrial units’ access from Outgang Lane to the north. A small existing
car park is to the front of the office buildings on Murton Way capable of

Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 36

accommodating approximately 20 cars. The warehouse building to the rear has its
own parking spaces numbering 10 cars. A total of ten cycle parking spaces were
available.

5.43 The application form states that the existing employees on site comprise 12
full-time and 2 part-time employees. The proposed number of employees is 100 full-
time plus 100 part-time employees. Final revised drawings show 40 car parking
spaces and 22 cycle parking spaces for the office element and 26 car parking
spaces and 20 cycle parking spaces for the new industrial buildings. Access is taken
from Murton Way, beneath the offices to a central parking area to the rear. A one
way system will operate to enable additional parking spaces to be provided and
adequate space for manoeuvring with deliveries in the north-east corner. Refuse
storage and collection will be from Outgang Lane and negotiation has resulted in a
suitable layby that a refuse collection vehicle can pull in and exit from without
obstructing the free-flow of traffic. There is no vehicular access into the site from this
point.

5.44 For the new industrial units, a separate and additional access is proposed
from Outgang Lane to a separate car parking area. Negotiations with highways
engineers have secured an improved layout for disabled parking and access into the
units. During the course of the application, it became clear that the adopted highway
as shown on record extended partly into the red line boundary and revisions have
sought to ensure there is no building within the adopted highway or opening of doors
out over the adopted highway. Negotiations took place on cycle parking provision
and sought the correct placing of Sheffield cycle stands.

5.45 The site is close to existing residential areas and as demonstrated in the
submitted Travel Statement, is in an accessible location in terms of walking and
cycling distance to the local population. There are footways along Osbaldwick Link
Road and Murton Way to Osbaldwick, Murton and Hull Road. On Osbaldwick Link
Road, shared use pedestrian / cycle paths are present on the western side of the
road and run along the entire stretch of the road between Murton Way and the
A1079 Hull Road. The closest bus stops are on Osbaldwick Link Road and Murton
Way and are within 300m of the site. Bus services connect with Clifton Moor, the
University, Rawcliffe, Osbaldwick, the city centre and Pocklington. The site is in a
sustainable location and has good local connections.

5.46 The net cumulative residual traffic impact of the proposed development on the
highway is not significant and therefore, a travel plan is not required.

Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 37

Ecology
Policy

5.47 Section 15 of the NPPF is on conserving and enhancing the natural
environment. Included in the requirements of development proposals at paragraph
174 is the need to protect and enhance valued landscapes and sites of biodiversity
and to minimise impact on and provide net gains for biodiversity.

5.48 Policy GI2 ‘Biodiversity and access to nature’ in the Publication Draft Local
Plan (2018) requires development to avoid loss or significant harm to Sites of
Importance for Nature Conservation (SINCs) whether directly or indirectly and to
secure a net gain in biodiversity. Policy Gl4 underlines the value to existing tree
cover and hedgerows for their biodiversity value, the contribution they can make to
the quality of development and assimilation into the landscape context.

5.49 These policies have not been subject to significant change in the January
2023 papers for the new consultation ‘main modifications’ to be commenced in
February 2023 in relation to the parts of the policies that apply to the proposals. As
such they are considered to carry significant weight. The requirement for 10% net
gain in biodiversity in accordance with the Environment Act 2021 is not yet required
to be demonstrated.

Assessment

5.50 As confirmed in the submitted Ecological Impact Assessment, due to the
existing hedgerow on the western boundary and few trees, there is some potential
for nesting birds to be present on site. Precautionary methods will therefore be
needed to ensure active nests are not destroyed during any require vegetation
clearance and demolition works and this can be secured by condition. The proposed
native hedging, significant tree planting and wildflower meadow offers opportunities
for biodiversity net hain and a biodiversity enhancement plan/drawing can be
secured via condition to ensure this is implemented. The hedgerow on the western
boundary offers suitable bat foraging habitat and should be protected. A CEMP
biodiversity can be agreed by condition to protect this hedgerow and the adjacent
candidate SINC during construction. As such, the biodiversity value of the site can
be protected and enhanced in accordance with the policy framework.

Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 38

Sustainable construction

Policy

5.51 Paragraph 8(c) of the NPPF 2021 requires planning to mitigate and adapt to
climate change, including moving to a low carbon economy. Paragraph 10 sets a
clear presumption in favour of sustainable development.

5.52 The Publication Draft Local Plan (2018) Policy CC1: ‘Renewable and Low
Carbon Energy Generation and Storage’ is now heavily modified in the January
2023 main modifications paper and the requirement for new buildings to achieve a
reasonable reduction in carbon emissions of at least 28% deleted. Emerging policy
CC2 has also been heavily modified and thus these policies are now considered to
carry no weight until the revised version has been through consultation.

Assessment

5.53 The applicant has submitted a report ‘Sustainable design alternatives’ by
Martin Design Building Service Design: Low Carbon Consultants. The proposal is to
install air source heat pumps rather than gas fired systems to generate the heating
energy required. This will result in very significant carbon deduction being achieved
with calculations presented by these consultants that by adopting a heating service
strategy based upon the proposed changes in Part L of the Building Regulations a
79.2% reduction in carbon emissions would be achieved over a gas fired installation
and along with a site wide PV installation and much improved and sustainable
building fabric.

5.54 The LPA’s carbon reduction team confirm that the report makes clear that
multiple Low or Zero Carbon (LZC) technologies to reduce the overall carbon
emissions from the building have been considered. Air Source Heat Pumps
(ASHPs), high efficiency LED lighting with presence detection and mechanical
ventilation are going to be used alongside double glazed windows, high level of
insulation and low flush WC cisterns to reduce carbon emissions by 79.2% (under
the 2022 Part L Building Regulations). Solar Photovoltaics have also been
considered and will ideally be used. Other LZC Technologies considered within the
statement were; Wind Energy, Solar Hot Water Systems, Combined Heat and
Power (CHP) and Biomass but each of these technologies were discounted due to

Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 39

better technologies being used or being unable to use the technology in this
location.

6.0 CONCLUSION

6.1 The proposal is for the erection of 1no. three storey office building (use class E)
and 2no. two storey light industrial buildings (use classes E, B2 and B8) together
with parking and new access arrangements following demolition of the existing
buildings in the southern portion of the site on Murton Way in Osbaldwick. Both the
town centre and flood risk sequential tests are passed, as is the exception test for
flooding. The design and landscaping is considered appropriate for the site, and
good design of a new head quarter’s building for this well-established company with
a long history in York. Six new industrial units to assimilate with the existing units in
the estate are proposed. Access and parking provision is acceptable and there is no
harm to neighbour amenity, subject to details to be submitted by condition.

6.2 As such the proposals are found to be in accordance with relevant sections of
the NPPF 2021 including 6, 11, 12 and 14. It is also found to be in accordance with
emerging policies in the Publication Draft Local Plan 2018, particularly DP2
Sustainable development, DP3 Sustainable communities, ENV4 Flood risk, D1
Placemaking and T1 Sustainable access.

7.0 RECOMMENDATION: Approve
1 TIME2 Development start within three years

2  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following plans and other submitted details:-

Location plan, SHO-570-001, 03.10.2019

Proposed location plan, SHO-570-001 revision B

Proposed block plan, SHO-570-001 revision B

Proposed site plan, SHO-570-001 100 revision D

Proposed ground floor plan, sheet 1 of 2, SHO-570-001 101 revision C
Proposed ground floor plan, sheet 2 of 2, SHO-570-001 102 revision C
Proposed first floor plan, sheet 1 of 2, SHO-570-001 110 revision C
Proposed first floor plan, sheet 2 of 2, SHO-570-001 111 revision C
Proposed second floor plan, sheet 1 of 2, SHO-570-001 120 revision C
Proposed second floor plan, sheet 2 of 2, SHO-570-001 121 revision C
Proposed elevations, sheet 1 of 2, SHO-570-001 201 revision C
Proposed elevations, sheet 2 of 2, SHO-570-001 202 revision C

2B Landscape Consultancy Ltd's Planting Plan, 2022-439 300, dated 30.05.2022

Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 40

Drainage layout, 3485-SL(5)500 revision C dated 12.01.2023

Drainage details, 3485 SL(5)501 dated October 2022

Proposed site plan, flood exceedance routing, 3485 SL(5)511 revision B, dated
12.01.2023

Martin design Associates Ltd report 'Sustainable design alternatives' dated
08.12.2021

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried
out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority.

3  Notwithstanding any proposed materials specified on the approved drawings
or in the application form submitted with the application, samples of the external
materials to be used shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority prior to the commencement of development above ground level.
The development shall be carried out using the approved materials.

This shall include:

- Proposed bricks

- Proposed tiles

- Proposed render panels including finish and colour
- External door materials and colour

- External colour of window frames and materials

- Colour and material of rainwater goods

Note: Because of limited storage space at our offices sample materials should be
made available for inspection at the site. Please make it clear in your approval of
details application when the materials will be available for inspection and where they
are located.

Reason: So as to achieve a visually cohesive appearance.

4 Details of all means of enclosure to the site boundaries shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to being installed on
site. Thereafter they shall be installed fully in accordance with these approved
details before the development is first occupied.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area and the amenities of
neighbouring properties.

5 Prior to any above ground works commencing, a detailed landscape scheme
shall be submitted for approval in writing by the local planning authority. It shall be in
accordance with the landscape scheme shown on 2B Landscape Consultancy Ltd's
'‘Planting Plan' drawing reference 2022-439 300 and the 'Proposed Site Plan' SHO-

Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 41

570-001 100 revision D (including all planting details and maintenance and seating
areas) and shall be implemented in full within a period of six months of the practical
completion of development. For the lifetime of the development, any trees or plants
which die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased, shall be
replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and species, unless
the Local Planning Authority approves alternatives in writing.

Reason: So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with the variety,
suitability and disposition of species within the entire site, since the landscape
scheme is integral to the amenity of the development.

6  Prior to any above ground works, all tree planting details shall be submitted
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This shall include:
maintenance regimes and responsibilities, means of support and irrigation, soil
volumes, root barriers, structural soil cell systems where applicable, corresponding
paving details and locations of underground utilities. Where trees are to be located
within paved areas, the surface area of soil cell systems, soil volumes, tree species
and any utilities shall also be shown on a tree planting plan. Thereafter the trees
shall be planted fully in accordance with these approved details prior to first
occupation of the development.

Reason: The trees are an important element of the approved landscape scheme
which is integral to the amenity and setting of the development. Suitable detailing
and maintenance will encourage the trees to establish and thrive.

7 No vegetation clearance, tree works or building demolition works shall take
place between 1st March and 31st August inclusive, unless a competent ecologist
has undertaken a careful, detailed check of vegetation and buildings for active birds'
nests immediately before the vegetation is cleared and provided written confirmation
that no birds will be harmed and/or that there are appropriate measures in place to
protect nesting bird interest on site. Any such written confirmation should be
submitted to the local planning authority for approval in writing.

Reason: To ensure that breeding birds are protected from harm during construction.
All British birds, their nests and eggs (with certain limited exceptions) are protected
by Section 1 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, as amended.

8 A biodiversity enhancement plan/drawing shall be submitted to, and be
approved in writing by, the local planning authority prior to the commencement of
above ground works on site. The content of the plan shall include, but not be limited
to, the recommendations set-out in the Ecological Impact assessment, MAB
Environment & Ecology Ltd. (November 2021), as already submitted with the
planning application and approved in principle with the local planning authority prior
to determination.

Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 42

Reason: To take account of and enhance the biodiversity and wildlife interest of the
area, and to be in accordance with Paragraph 174 d) of the NPPF (2021) to
contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by minimising impacts
on and providing net gains for biodiversity, including by establishing coherent
ecological networks that are more resilient to current and future pressures.

9  Prior to first occupation of the development, details including a 'lighting design
plan’' showing the height, type, position, angle and spread of any external lighting
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The
external lighting shall be installed and maintained in accordance with the approved
details to minimise light spillage and glare outside the designated area.

The plan shall:

- Demonstrate that required external lighting has been selected in-line with current
guidance from the Bat Conservation Trust (2018) Bats and atrtificial lighting in the
UK.
https://cdn.bats.org.uk/pdf/Resources/ilp-guidance-note-8-bats-and-artificial-lighting-
compressed.pdf?mtime=20181113114229&focal=none

- Show how and where external lighting will be installed, so that it can be clearly
demonstrated that areas to be lit will not disturb light-sensitive wildlife, such as bats.

Reason: To protect the amenity of the locality and to maintain the favourable
conservation status of bats and ensure the site remains attractive to other light
sensitive species.

10 No development shall take place (including ground works and vegetation
removal) until a construction environmental management plan (CEMP: Biodiversity)
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.
Thereafter, work shall be undertaken in accordance with these approved details.

The CEMP: Biodiversity shall include the following:

a) Risk assessment of potentially damaging construction activities

b) Identification of 'biodiversity protection zones'

c) Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive working practices)
to avoid or reduce impacts during construction (may be provided as a set of
method statements)

d) The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to biodiversity
features

e) The times during construction when specialist ecologists need to be present
on site to oversee works

f) Responsible persons and lines of communication

g) The roles and responsibilities on site of an ecological clerk of works (ECoW) or
similarly competent person

Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 43

h)  Use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs

Reason: To facilitate the protection of notable/sensitive habitats within Osbaldwick
Meadow candidate SINC located adjacent to the site boundaries.

11  Prior to commencement of development, a Construction Environmental
Management Plan (CEMP) for minimising the creation of noise, vibration and dust
during the demolition, site preparation and construction phases of the development
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
CEMP must include a site specific risk assessment of dust impacts in line with the
guidance provided by IAQM (see http://lagm.co.uk/guidance/) and include a
package of mitigation measures commensurate with the risk identified in the
assessment. All works on site shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved
scheme, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The CEMP shall include the following:

a) Noise details and hours of construction, deliveries, types of machinery to be
used, acoustic barriers, and any prefabrication off site should be set out.

b) Details of any particularly noisy activities and when they may take place and
how impacts may be lessened, including any monitoring.

c) Vibration details for any activities which may result in excessive vibration and
details of any monitoring to be carried out.

d)  Dust mitigation measures.

e) Construction lighting details and hours of operation, location and angling.

f) Details of a complaints procedure and advertising of it.

Reason: To protect the amenity of the locality.

12  Prior to the commencement of development, a Construction Traffic
Management Plan (CTMP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the works shall be undertaken in accordance
with these approved details.

The CTMP shall include but not be limited to the following information:

a) Measures to prevent the egress of mud and other detritus onto the adjacent
public highway.

b) A dilapidation survey jointly undertaken with the local highway authority.

c)  The routing for construction traffic that will be promoted.

d) A scheme for signing the promoted construction traffic routing.

e)  Where contractors will park.

Reason: To ensure that the development can be carried out in a manner that will not
be to the detriment of amenity of local residents or the safe and free passage of

Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 44

highway users.

13 As shown on the approved plans, vehicular access to the office element shall
be from Murton Way and access to the commercial element shall be from Outgang
Lane. Details of the design of these accesses, together with associated sightlines,
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to
the commencement of the development. Once approved, they shall be constructed
fully in accordance with these details prior to first occupation of the development.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

14  Prior to the development coming into use, all areas used by vehicles shall be
surfaced, sealed and positively drained within the site, in accordance with details
which have been previously submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: To prevent the egress of water and loose material onto the public highway.

15 Prior to the development coming into first use, details of the cycle parking
areas, including means of enclosure, shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The building shall not be occupied until the cycle
parking areas and means of enclosure have been provided within the site in
accordance with such approved details, and these areas shall not be used for any
purpose other than the parking of cycles.

Reason: To promote use of cycles thereby reducing congestion on the adjacent
roads and in the interests of the amenity of neighbours.

16  The building shall not be occupied until the areas shown on the approved
plans for parking, turning and manoeuvring of vehicles and cycles have been
constructed and laid out in accordance with the approved plans, and thereafter such
areas shall be retained solely for such purposes

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to enable vehicles to enter and
leave the site in a forward gear thereby ensuring the safe and free passage of traffic
on the public highway.

17 The development hereby permitted shall not come into use until the following
highway works have been carried out in accordance with the approved plans, or
arrangements entered into, which ensure the same:

- Amendments to the existing entrance off Outgang Lane to provide lay-by for refuse
vehicle

To note: These works may need to be carried out under a S278 Agreement.
Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 45

Reason: In the interests of the safe and free passage of highway users.

18 Details of all machinery, plant and equipment to be installed in or located on
the premises, which is audible outside of the premises, shall be submitted to the
local planning authority for approval in writing prior to being installed on site. These
details shall include average sound levels (LAeq), octave band noise levels and any
proposed noise mitigation measures. The machinery, plant or equipment and any
approved noise mitigation measures shall be fully implemented and operational
before the proposed use first opens and shall be appropriately maintained
thereafter.

Note: The combined rating level of any building service noise associated with plant
or equipment at the site should not exceed the representative LA90 1 hour during
the hours of 07:00 to 23:00 or representative LA90 15 minutes during the hours of
23:00 to 07:00 at 1 metre from the nearest noise sensitive facades when assessed
in accordance with BS4142: 2014, inclusive of any acoustic feature corrections
associated with tonal, impulsive, distinctive or intermittent characteristics.

Reason: To protect the amenity of nearby properties and the environmental qualities
of the area.

19  All demolition and construction works and ancillary operations, including
deliveries to and dispatch from the site shall be confined to the following hours:

Monday to Friday = 0800 to 1800 hours
Saturday 0900 to 1300 hours
Not at all on Sundays and Bank Holidays

Reason: To protect the amenity of the locality.

20  Prior to development commencing (excluding demolition), an investigation and
risk assessment (in addition to any assessment provided with the planning
application) shall be undertaken to assess the nature and extent of any land
contamination and the potential risks to human health, groundwater, surface water
and other receptors. The investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken by
competent persons. A written report of the findings shall be produced, submitted to
and approved in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The report of the findings
must include:

a) asurvey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination (including ground
gases where appropriate);

b) an assessment of the potential risks to:

- human health,

- property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets,

Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 46

woodland and service lines and pipes,

- adjoining land,

- groundwaters and surface waters,

- ecological systems,

- archaeological sites and ancient monuments;

c) an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s).

This shall be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's
‘Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11"

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.

21  Prior to development commencing (excluding demolition), where remediation
works are shown to be necessary, a detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to
a condition suitable for the intended use (by removing unacceptable risks to human
health, buildings and other property and the natural and historical environment) shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
scheme shall include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures. The
scheme shall ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A
of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land
after remediation.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.

22  Prior to first occupation or use, the approved remediation scheme shall be
carried out in accordance with its terms and a verification report that demonstrates
the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced and is subject to
the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems.

23 Inthe event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the
approved development that was not previously identified, it must be reported in
writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk

Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 47

assessment must be undertaken and where remediation is necessary a remediation
scheme must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local
Planning Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved
remediation scheme a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the
approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.

24 A strategy for the provision of Electric Vehicle (EV) charging facilities (active
charge points and passive provision for future points) on the site shall be approved
in writing with the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of
development. The strategy shall include full specifications and location plans for the
charge points and should include details of the management, maintenance,
servicing and access arrangements for each EV charge point for a period of 10
years. The strategy shall be implemented as approved prior to first occupation of
the development.

Reason: To ensure provision of active and/or passive EV charging facilities in line
with the NPPF and CYC's Low Emission Strategy / Low Emission Planning
Guidance.

25 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the details shown on
the submitted Drainage Layout, drawing reference 3485-SL(5)500 revision C dated
12.01.2023, Drainage Details, 3485-SL(5)501 and the Proposed Site Plan, drawing
reference SHO-570-001 100 revision D, unless otherwise agreed in writing with the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interest of satisfactory and sustainable drainage of the site.

26  Unless otherwise approved in writing by the local planning authority, there
shall be no piped discharge of surface water from the development prior to the
completion of the approved surface water drainage works and no buildings shall be
occupied or brought into use prior to completion of the approved foul drainage
works.

Reason: So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied that no foul and
surface water discharges take place until proper provision has been made for their
disposal.

27  There must be no raising of ground levels within flood zone 3 and all excess
spoil must be removed from the site as soon as practically possible.

Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 48

Reason: To ensure that there is no loss of storage from flood zone 3, and that flood
flows are not displaced onto others.

28 The buildings shall be constructed in accordance with the flood resilient design
treatments set out in the Planning and Design Associates email of 06.01.2023 which
shall include but not be limited to:

- using flood resistant materials that have low permeability to at least 600mm above
the estimated flood level,

- using flood resilient materials (for example lime plaster) to at least 600mm above
the estimated flood level,

- raising all sensitive electrical equipment, wiring and sockets to at least 600mm
above the estimated flood level,

- making it easy for water to drain away after flooding such as installing a sump and
a pump,

- making sure there is access to all spaces to enable drying and cleaning, and

- ensuring that soil pipes are protected from back-flow such as by using non-return
valves.

Finished floor levels shall be constructed to 13.050m AOD.

Reason: To ensure the building is as flood resilient as possible when located in flood
zone 3.

8.0 INFORMATIVES:
Notes to Applicant

1. STATEMENT OF THE COUNCIL'S POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE APPROACH

In considering the application, the Local Planning Authority has implemented the
requirements set out within the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 38)
in seeking solutions to problems identified during the processing of the application.
The Local Planning Authority took the following steps in order to achieve a positive
outcome:

- Requested and assessed sequential and exception test reports

- Sought landscape revisions

- Negotiated for revised and additional highways safety information and parking
provision

- Negotiated and secured various drainage designs and strategy leading to a final
approved scheme

- Agreed pre-commencement of development conditions

Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 49

2. INFORMATIVE: NESTING BIRDS

The applicant is reminded that, under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, as
amended (section 1), it is an offence to remove, damage or destroy the nest of any
wild bird while that nest is in use or being built. Planning consent for a development
does not provide a defence against prosecution under this act. Buildings, trees and
scrub are likely to contain nesting birds between 1st March and 31st August
inclusive. Suitable habitat is present on the application site and is to be assumed to
contain nesting birds between the above dates, unless a recent survey has been
undertaken by a competent ecologist to assess the nesting bird activity on site
during this period and has shown it is absolutely certain that nesting birds are not
present.

3. INFORMATIVE: HEDGEHOGS

Section 7.6 (Other species) of the EcIA states that hedgehogs have been recorded
in the local area. The applicant is advised to consider using permeable fencing or
leaving occasional gaps suitable to allow passage of hedgehogs. Any potential
hibernation sites including log piles should be removed outside the hibernation
period (which is between November and March inclusive) in order to avoid killing or
injuring hedgehog.

Hedgehogs are of priority conservation concern and are a Species of Principal
Importance under section 41 of the NERC Act (2006). An important factor in their
recent population decline is that fencing and walls are becoming more secure,
reducing their movements and the amount of land available to them. Small gaps of
approximately 13x13cm can be left at the base of fencing to allow hedgehogs to
pass through. Habitat enhancement for hedgehogs can easily be incorporated into
developments, for example through provision of purpose-built hedgehog shelters or
log piles.

https://lwww.britishhedgehogs.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/developers-1.pdf
4. INFORMATIVE: CONSENT FOR HIGHWAYS WORKS

You are advised that prior to starting on site consent will be required from the
Highway Authority for the works being proposed, under the Highways Act 1980
(unless alternatively specified under the legislation or Regulations listed below). For
further information please contact the sections named:

Agreements as to execution of works (Section 278) -
development.adoption@york.gov.uk

Works in the highway (Section 171) - streetworks@york.gov.uk

Temporary highway closure (Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, Section 14)
highway.regulation@york.gov.uk

Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 50

6. INFORMATIVE: ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING POINTS

The specification and locations of all Electric Vehicle Charging Points (including
potential future locations) should be agreed in writing with CYC. It is recommended
that the applicant reviews Approved Document S, 2021 edition, relating to
infrastructure for the charging of electric vehicles to inform the choice of hardware
and the design of cable routes / passive provision.

All electrical circuits/installations shall comply with the electrical requirements in
force at the time of installation.

The strategy should provide confirmation that the charge points will be serviced and
maintained in line with the manufacturers recommendations for a minimum period of
10 years. It should also address what would happen in the event of a fault with a
charge point and explain how this will be reported and rectified.

7. INFORMATIVE: DRAINAGE

I) The applicant should be advised that Yorkshire Water's prior consent is required
as well as planning permission to make a connection of foul and surface water to the
public sewer network.

i) The applicant should be advised that York Consortium of Drainage Board's prior
consent is required (outside the planning process) for any development including
fences or planting within 9.00m of the bank top of any watercourse within or forming
the boundary of the site. Any proposals to culvert, bridge, fill in or make a discharge
(either directly or indirectly) to the watercourse will also require the Board's prior
consent.

Contact details:

Case Officer:  Sophie Prendergast
Tel No: 01904 555138

Application Reference Number: 22/00015/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 51

22/00015/FULM

J H Shouksmith And Sons Ltd, Murton Way, York YO19 5GS

GIS by ESRI (UK) |§

andle
& \Park

a
York CoWege ,

Construc on
Centre
[/
3 7
)

Scale : 1:1830
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission Organisation |City of York Council
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2000. Department |Directorate of Place
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may . .
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Comments Site Location Plan
Date 16 February 2023

SLA Number [Not Set

Produced using ESRI (UK)'s MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com




This page is intentionally left blank



“—J"'; CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Planning Committee A

22/00015/FULM
J H Shouksmith And Sons Ltd Murton Way

Planning Committee A Meeting - 2 March 2023

cG abed



Existing site plan

York College
Construction
Centre

[y ——"
ER PROTECTION FROM UNFAIR TRADING REGULATIONS 2008

(CPRE) AXD TEE BUSINESS PROTECTION FROM MISLEADING MARKETING

EEGULATIONS 2008 (37251

st

e

e —

o e i e o . e A sty o e

Builders Yard

The Planning & Design Associates

PLANNING. ARCHITECTURE. INTERICRS. LANDSCAPE

The Chicory Barn Studio,
The Old Brickyasds, Moor Lane, Samford Bridge,
York, The East Riding Of Yorkshire, YO41 1HU.

Telephone 01759 373656 Fax 01759 371810
Email:pdaenquiries®the pdassociates
sy the pdassociates.co.uk

Cient

JH SHOUKSMITH & SONS LTD

MURTONWAY, YORK, Y019 565

Pt

PROPOSED COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT|
MURTONWAY, YORK, Y019 565

Dezaing

EXISTING BLOCK PLAN
% 3 0ct 2019 o
ST cale 1:500 @ AT Rer
““"PLANNING

SHO-570-001

Planning Committee A Meeting - 2 March 2023

G abed



Proposed site plan

York College

Construction
Centre

York

1
Totse

vy eyt

CONSUMER PROTECTION FROM UNFATR TRADING REGULATIONS 2003
(CPRS) AND THE BUSINESS PROTECTION FROM MISLEADING MARKETING
REGULATIONS 2008 (PRS)

e o e o st ot s e o

O Wy o g Sy

=

Builders Yard

o -

The Planning & Design Associates

PLANNING.ARCHITECTURE. INTERIORS. LANDSCAPE

The Chicory Barn Studio,
The Old Brickyards, Moor Lane, Samford Bridge,
York, The East Riding Of Yorkshire, YO41 1HU.

Telephone 01759 373656 Fax 01759 371810
Email:pdaenquiries@the pdassociates
wvww. the pdassociates.co.uk

et

JH SHOUKSMITH & SONS LTD

MURTON WAY, YORK, YO19 565

Friect

PROPOSED COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT|

MURTON WAY, YORK, YO19 565

Deauing

PROPOSED BLOCK PLAN

B 03.0e2019 oo

5 Seale 1500 @ Al = B

*** PLANNING

orug. o

SHO-570-001

Planning Committee A Meeting - 2 March 2023

GG abed



Pty Sy sty

‘CONSUMER PROTECTION FROM UNFAIR TRADING REGULATIONS 2008
‘THE BUSINESS PROTECTION FROM MISLEADING MARKETING

TOTAL ACCOMMODATION

Shouksmiths (Building Service Engineers)
it

SECOND FLOOR 140.02m"11,507 sq ft

SUB TOTAL 611.67m?6,584 sq ft

Shouksmiths (Maintenance and Refrigeration)
‘GROUND FLOOR 38m¥887 sq fit

FIRST FLOOR 89.69m%965 3 ft
SECONDFLOOR  75.12m¥80sq ft

SUB TOTAL 247.19m?12,661 sq ft

REMAINING OFFICE SPACE
GROUNDFLOOR  91.37m%984 sq ft
FIRST FLOOR 91 B4m¥989 sq fr
SECONDFLOOR  139.12m1497 sa &t

SUBTOTAL  322.33m¥3470sqft

1,181.19m?12,T14sq ft OFFICE SPACE
40 CAR PARKING SPACES
22 CYCLE SPACES

1,396.28m?/15,030 sq ft COMMERCIAL SPACE
26 CAR PARKING SPACES (INC 6 EXTG RELOCATED)
20 GYGLE SPACES

TYPICAL KERB UPSTAND DETAIL
SCALE 150 @ Al

The Planning & Design Associates

PLANNING.. INTERIORS. LANDSCAPE

The Chisory Bara Studio,
The Old Brickyaeds, Moo Lane, Stamford Bridge,
“York, The East Riding Of Yorkshire, YO41 1HU.

Telephone 01759 373656 Fax 01759 371810
E-mail:pdaenquiries®the pdassociates
www. the pdassociates co.uk

i

JH SHOUKSMITH & SONS LTD

MURTON WAY, YORK, Y019 565

P
PROPOSED COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT|
MURTON WAY, YORK, YO195GS

o
‘[ ‘\l PROPOSED SITE PLAN
Iy
il
f"[\ o 03002019 o
’r’ = Scale 1200 @ A1 =~ D
’

“""PLANNING
T
SHO-570-001 100

Planning Committee A Meeting - 2 March 2023

9G abed



Page 57

._ A
102 100-0.5-OHS o ot e Sy
ke OISILE 6SL10X®1 9S9ELE 66110 U0ydopL, D T e s o
ONINNYId s o i Ly
“(HT THOA ‘BNYSPOL JO Suipny 1seg 3y “pox aopupsny o 5 oy =]
J  m WOWEI A geog 9pug pIojumag Our] 1001 ‘SpIEEPL PIO ML a S Ao TIVAALIV AL
o 200N g ‘orpmg weg A103yD 31, - walauns Asouita ¢ 0 150300 80 110 “Beises
7401 133HS FAVOSANVT " SIONELNI TUNLOTLHOYV ONINNVTd iy Berdumalag =9
SNOILVA313 03S0d0Nd ... | | SPIDIOOSSY USTS(] & SUTwum]J oYL )

awewy jostape pusicol .
apng b o et s0u 1 nqopdond o sesndos

0 o e 3 01 dn 11q.10) 2| HEPUNOG O IPHIS [ P A e WP Y
103 Fuang Jupauion g snboegs g @ ¥ pu

o ALY

595 610A'SIOA 'AYM NOLMN

AIN3IWdOT3A3A TVIOYIWIWOD 03S0d0odd e

s%_g_ . -
S5 810 HIOA ‘AYM NOLINW ev:..u: e Ptp——
QLTSNOS 3 HLINSYNOHS HP = ot T o

. g [ 97 M I P . ssﬁ. * mh; it e R
g TN o tv, L .

g . B JFe e
P

s £ % ¢ H

™ om me Wl Mmoo LA

(SLINn Tz8)
g NOILYAT 13 (HLNOS) ¥v3y

T, T

Il
LT T T T T I TTTITTT

NOILVA3T3 (1S3M) 3aIs

MTODWHR =T

NOILVAZ13 (LSV3) 3aIS

i
b
=3
wrodwnE=
7
o
Y
wzonxn
P
B
B4 ?
G

A T o

NOILVA313 (HLNOS) LNO¥A

Proposed elevations

Planning Committee A Meeting - 2 March 2023



Proposed elevations

SOUTH ELEVATION (B2 UNITS)

NORTH ELEVATION (B2 UNITS)

—
N
-
™
EAST ELEVATION (B2 UNITS)
= ]
- - .
55 g -
L o]
g ,
) B o, B

| |

The Planning & Design Associates

PLANNING. ARCHITECTURE. INTERIORS. LANDSCAPE

The Chicory Barn Studio,
The Old Brickyards, Moor Lane, Samford Bridge,
York, The East Riding Of Yorkshire, YO41 1HU.

Telephone 01759 373656 Fax 01759 371810
Email pdaenquiries@the-pdassociates
www.thepdassociates.co.uk

WEST ELEVATION (B2 UNITS) %—i

Gien.

JH SHOUKSMITH & SONS LTD

MURTON WAY, YORK, YO19 565

P

PROPOSED COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT
MURTON WAY, YORK, YO19 565

oxaming

PROPOSED ELEVATIONS

Sheet 2 of 2
% March 2020 o
53 Scak 1100 @ A1 = C
“* PLANNING
o e

SHO-570-001 202

gG abed



Proposed ground floor
plan - part

et ey
CONSUMER PROTECTION FROM UNFATR TRADING REGULATIONS 2008
(CPRS) AND THE BUSDNESS PROTECTION FROM MISLEADING MARKETING
[ REGUL ATIONS 2008 (BPRS)

et

prirath

s ey B A, ey e

TOTAL ACCOMMODATION

Shouksmiths (Building Service Engineers)
GROUNDFLOOR ~ 211.03mi2272 sq ft
FIRST FLOOR 260.62m72,805 5q ft.
SECOND FLOOR 140.02m1,507 sq ft.

SUB TOTAL 611.67m/6,584 3q ft

Shouksmiths (Maintenance and Refrigeration)
'GROUND  38m?887 sq ft

FIRST FLOOR 89.69m965 3q ft
SECONDFLOOR  75.12mB09 sq ft

SUBTOTAL  247.19m¥2,661q ft
REMAINING OFFICE SPACE

'GROUND FLOOR 3Tm?984 5q ft

FIRST FLOOR

SECOND FLOOR 139.92m1.497 sq ft.
SUBTOTAL  322.33m¥3470sqft
1,181.19m%/12,714sq ft OFFICE SPACE

40 CAR PARKING SPACES
22 CYCLE SPACES

1,396.28m%/15,030 sq ft COMMERCIAL SPACE
26 CAR PARKING SPAGES (INC 6 EXTG RELOGATED)
20 CYCLE SPACES

The Planning & Design Associates

PLANNING. ARCHITECTURE. INTERIORS. LANDSCAPE

The Chicory Baen Studio,
‘The Old Brickyards, Moor Lane, Samford Bridge,
York, The East Riding Of Yorkshire, YO41 1HU.

Telephone 01759 373656 Fax 01759 371810
Email uiries@the pdassociates

www.the pdassociates. co.uk

=

JH SHOUKSMITH & SONS LTD

MURTON WAY, YORK, Y019 565

==
PROPOSED COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT
MURTON WAY, YORK, Y019 565

ooming
PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN
SHEET 10F 2

P March 200 oma
5 Seale 1100 @ Al = C
" PLANNING

I

SHO-570-001 101

Planning Committee A Meeting - 2 March 2023

6SG abed



Ground floor plan

- part

2
p ;’q/
i, Pl
/;7/%;/%"@/
gy Vs

Yepy, -

o,
gy, ety
iy B0
Za s

[y ety

CONSUMER PROTECTION FROM UNFATR TRADING REGULATIONS 2008
(CPRS) AND THE BUSDESS PROTECTION FROM MISLEADING MARKETING,
'REGULATIONS 2008 (3525

e e ——————

g st pemn . v A o e

TOTAL ACCOMMODATION

Shouksmiths (Building Service Engineers)
GROU 220250 ft

FIRST FLOOR 260.62m712,805 50 ft
SECOND FLOOR  140.02m1,507 sq ft

SUB TOTAL 611.67m%/6,584 sq ft

GROUND FLOOR
FIRST FLOOR
SECOND FLOOR

SUB TOTAL 247.19m?/2,661 sq ft

REMAINING OFFICE SPACE
GROUNDFLOOR  9137m?984 sqft
FIRST FLOOR

91.84m*/989 sq ft
ID FLOOR 139 12m* 497 sq ft
SUBTOTAL  322.33mP3470sqft

1,181.19m%12,714sq ft OFFICE SPACE
40 CAR PARKING SPACES
22 CYCLE SPACES

1,396.28m%15,030 sq ft COMMERCIAL SPACE
26 CAR PARKING SPACES (INC 6 EXTG RELOCATED)
20 CYCLE SPACES

The Planning & Design Associates

PLANNING. ARCHITECTURE. INTERIORS. LANDSCAPE

The Chicory Barn Srudio,
The Old Brickyards, Moor Lane, Samford Bridge,
“York, The East Riding Of Yorkshire, YO41 1HU.

Telephone 01759 373656 Fax01759 371810
Email iries@the-peassociates

ciem.

JH SHOUKSMITH & SONS LTD

MURTON WAY, YORK, Y019 565

P
PROPOSED COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT
MURTON WAY, YORK, Y019 565

g
PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN
SHEET 20F 2

B March 2020 o
5 Scale 1100 @ A1 =oC
" PLANNING

SHO-570-001 102

Planning Committee A Meeting - 2 March 2023

09 abed



First floor plan - part

e <o

N

P & Do e

CONSUMER PROTECTION FROM UNFATE TRADING REGULATIONS 2008
(CPRS) AND THE BUSINESS PROTECTION FROM MISLEADING MARKETING.
REGULATIONS 2008 (BPES)

e e —

T

TOTAL ACCOMMODATION

Shouksmiths (Building Service Engineers)
GROUNDFLOOR  2483mi2.272sq
FIRSTFLOOR 2606202 805 5q f
SECONDFLOOR  140.02m?H1 507 sq ft

SUB TOTAL 611.67m%/6,584 sq ft

Shouksmiths (Maintenance and Refrigeration)
GROUNDFLOOR 8238887 sq ft
FIRSTFLOOR 896901965 sq ft
SECONDFLOOR 7512809 sq ft

SUB TOTAL 24719m?/2,661 sq ft

REMAINING OFFICE SPACE
GROUNDFLOOR  91.37m?984 sq it
FIRSTFLOOR 9 sq
SECONDFLOOR  139.12m1 497 sqft

SUBTOTAL  322.33m%3470sqft

1,181.19m%12,714sq ft OFFICE SPACE
40 CAR PARKING SPACES
22 CYCLE SPACES

1,396.28m?15,030 sq ft COMMERCIAL SPACE
26 CAR PARKING SPACES (INC 6 EXTG RELOCATED)
20 CYCLE SPACES

The Planning & Design Associates

PLANNING. ARCHITECTURE.INTERIORS. LANDSCAPE

‘The Chicory Barn Srudio,
The Old Briclyasds, Moo Lane, Smmford Bridge,
York, The East Riding Of Yorkshire, YO41 1HU.

Telephone 01759 373656 Fax 01759 371810
Bemail:pdaenquiries@thepdassociates
e the pdassociates.co.uk

cien.

JH SHOUKSMITH & SONS LTD

MURTON WAY, YORK, Y019 568

Pt

PROPOSED COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT

MURTON WAY, YORK, Y019 56§

oairg
PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN
SHEET 1 OF 2

= March 2020 o

53 Scake 1100 @AT R od

“** PLANNING

o e

SHO-570-001 110

Planning Committee A Meeting - 2 March 2023

T9 abed



First floor plan - part

g,

O,
g
/l% %

oy
Yo B
g

&

[ty vyt

CONSUMER PROTECTION FROM UNFATR. TRADING REGULATIONS 2008
(CPRS) AND THE BUSINESS PROTECTION FROM — TN
EEGULATIONS 2008 (B9%5)

e e e ot & et ot e o e

e e g s . A e ey .

TOTAL ACCOMMODATION

(! g Service E
GROUNDFLOOR  11.03n3,372 sq e
FIRSTFLOOR 260.62m712.805 sq ft
SECONDFLOOR  140.02m/1 507 saft

SUB TOTAL 611.6Tm?/6,584 sq ft

Sh iths (Mai and Refrig
‘GROUND FLOOR 82.38m?/887 sq ft
FIRST FLOOR 89.69m?/965 sq ft

SECONDFLOOR  75.12m?/809 sq ft

SUB TOTAL 24719m?/2,661 sq ft
REMAINING OFFICE SPACE
GROUND FLOOR /984 sq ft

FIRST FLOOR 91.84m?989
SECONDFLOOR  139.12n7/1.497 sqft

SUBTOTAL  322.33m%/3,470 sq ft

1,181.19m%12,714sq ft OFFICE SPACE
40 CAR PARKING SPACES
22 CYCLE SPACES

1,396.28m?%15,030 sq ft COMMERCIAL SPACE
26 CAR PARKING SPAGES (INC 6 EXTG RELOCATED)
20 CYCLE SPACES

The Planning & Design Associates

PLANNING. ARCHITECTURE. INTERIORS. LANDSCAPE

The Chicory Barn Studio,
The Old Brickyards, Moor Lane, Samford Bridge,
York, The East Riding Of Yorkshire, YO41 1HU.

Telephone 01759 373656 Fax 01759 371810
pdacnquirics@the pdassociates
‘www.thepdassociates.co.uk

e o
JH SHOUKSMITH & SONS LTD
MURTON WAY, YORK, YO19565
—_ po—
% PROPOSED COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT|

MURTON WAY, YORK, YO19565

Deaming.
PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN
SHEET 20F 2

P March 2020 ome

53 Scale 1:100 @ AT mC

™ PLANNING

1 [ SHO-570-001 111

Planning Committee A Meeting - 2 March 2023

10

29 abed



Proposed second floor
- office

et Sy

CONSUMER PROTECTION FROM UNFATR TRADING REGULATIONS 2008
(CPRS) AND THE SUSINESS PROTECTION FROM MISLEADING MARKETING
'REGULATIONS 008 (BPRS)

oS ey g g

TOTAL ACCOMMODATION

Shouksmiths (Building Service Engineers)
GROUNDFLOOR  211.03n02T2sq ft
FIRST FLOOR 26062mA2 805 sq ft
SECONDFLOOR  140.02n21 507 sq ft

SUB TOTAL 611.67m?/6,584 sq ft
Shouksmiths (Maintenance and Refrigeration)
‘GROUND FLOOR 82.38m*887 sq ft

FIRST FLOOR 89.69m*1965 3 ft

SECOND FLOOR 75.12m*809 3q ft

SUB TOTAL 247.19m?/2,661 sq ft

REMAINING OFFICE SPACE
GROUNDFLOOR  91.37m7984 sqft
FIRST FLOOR 91.84m989 sq ft

SECONDFLOOR  130.12nA/1497 sq

SUBTOTAL  32233mP3470 sqft

1,181.19m?/12,714sq ft OFFICE SPACE
40 CAR PARKING SPACES
22 CYCLE SPACES

1,396.28m?15,030 sq ft COMMERCIAL SPACE
26 CAR PARKING SPACES (INC 6 EXTG RELOCATED)
20 CYCLE SPACES

The Planning & Design Associates

PLANNING. ARCHITECTURE. INTERIORS. LANDSCAPE

The Chicory Barn Studio,
‘The Old Brickyasds, Moor Lane, Stamford Bridge,
York, The East Riding Of Yorkshire, YO41 {HU.

Telephone 01759 373656 Fax 01759 371810
-pdaenquiries@the-pdassociates
. the pdassociates co.uk.

Planning Committee A Meeting - 2 March 2023

cien.

JH SHOUKSMITH & SONS LTD

MURTON WAY, YORK, Y019565

Pzt

PROPOSED COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT]
MURTON WAY, YORK, Y019 565

ooning
PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR PLAN
SHEET 1 OF 2

P March 2000 o
5 Seale 11100 @AT = C
*** PLANNING

o

$HO-570-001 120

11

€9 abed



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 65 Agenda ltem 5

COUNCIL

Planning Committee A 2 March 2023
Planning Committee B 8 February 2023

Planning Appeal Performance and Decisions

This report informs Members of planning appeal decisions determined by
the Planning Inspectorate between 1 April and 30 June 2022. Appendix
A is a list of the appeals decided, a summary of each decision is
provided in appendix B and a list of outstanding planning appeals in
appendix C.

Appeal statistics are collated by the Planning Inspectorate on a quarterly
and annual basis. The Government use the statistical returns as one of a
number of measures to assess the performance of local planning
authorities. To assess the quality of decisions, this is based on the total
number of decisions made by the Local Planning Authorities that are
subsequently overturned at appeal. The threshold whereby a Local
Planning Authority is eligible for designation as under-performing is 10%
of the Authority’s total number of decisions on major, non-major and
“county-matter” (generally minerals and waste proposals) applications
made during the assessment period being overturned at appeal.

Table 1 shows results of planning appeals decided by the Planning
Inspectorate for the quarter 1 April to 30 June 2022 for all types of
planning appeals such as those against the refusal of planning
permission, against conditions of approval, listed building applications
and lawful development certificates. In the corresponding quarter the
Planning Inspectorate allowed 29% of appeals determined in England.

Table 1: CYC Planning Appeals Last Quarter Performance

01/04/22 to 30/06/22

Allowed 4
Split decision 0
Dismissed 3
Total Decided 7

% Allowed 57%




Page 66

There were no appeal decisions received during the quarter relating to
the refusal of an application for a “major” development.

Table 2: CYC Planning Appeals 12 month Performance

01/07/21 to 30/06/22 01/07/2020 to 30/06/21
Allowed 10 9
Split decision 1 2
Dismissed 26 39
Total Decided 37 50
% Allowed 27% 18%

For the 12 months period 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2022, 27% of CYC
appeals decided were allowed. In England 29% of appeals were allowed
over the same period.

The latest available figures from the Department of Levelling Up Housing
and Communities ( the assessment criteria set out in paragraph 2 above)
show that over the 2-year rolling assessment period that 0.5% of the total
CYC decisions made in respect of non-major applications and 0% of total
decisions made in respect of major applications were overturned at
appeal. The comparison figures for England are 1% and 0.9%
respectively. There were no appeals in respect of “county-matter”
applications during the period.

A list of the planning appeals determined between 1 April and 30 June
2022 are included in Appendix A. Summaries of the decisions are
included in Appendix B. One appeal was determined following a decision
to refuse permission made by the sub-committee/committee.

Table 3: Appeals Decided 01/04/2022 to 30/06/2022 following
Refusal by Committee / Sub-Committee

Appn Ref | Site Proposal Appeal
No Outcome
21/00116/ | Frederick Variation of condition 2 of Allowed
FUL House permitted application

Fulford Road | 19/00603/FULM seeking
amendments to external
appearance, landscaping,
internal arrangements,
substation, refuse and cycle
stores




10

11

14

15

16

17

19

20

Page 67

The list of current appeals is attached at Appendix C. There are 19
appeals of all types awaiting determination.

Consultation

This is an information report for Members and therefore no consultation
has taken place regarding its content.

Council Plan

The report is relevant to the “Well-paid jobs and an inclusive economy,”

Creating homes and World-class Infrastructure,” A Greener and cleaner
city,” “Getting around sustainably” and “Good Health and Wellbeing” city
outcomes of the Council Plan.

Implications

Financial — There are no financial implications directly arising from the
report.

Human Resources — There are no Human Resources implications
directly involved within this report and the recommendations within it
other than the need to allocate officer time towards the provision of the
information.

Legal — There are no known legal implications associated with this report
or the recommendations within it.

There are no known Equalities, Property, Crime & Disorder or other
implications associated with the recommendations within this report.

Risk Management

In compliance with the Council’s risk management strategy, there are no
known risks associated with the recommendations of this report.

Recommendation
That Members note the content of this report.
Reason

To inform Members of the current position in relation to planning appeals
against the Council’s decisions as determined by the Planning
Inspectorate.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the
report:



Page 68

Gareth Arnold Becky Eades
Development Manager, Head of Planning and Development
Development Management Services
Report | Date  31.01.2023
Approved

Specialist Implications Officer(s) None.

Wards Affected: All 1Y

For further information please contact the author of the report.

Appendices

Appendix A — Planning Appeals decided between 1 April and 30
June 2022

Appendix B - Summaries of Planning Appeals decided between 1
April and 30 June 2022

Appendix C - Outstanding Planning Appeals at 31 January 2023



Appendix A

Decided Appeals — 1 April to 30 June 2022

Ward

CYC Appeal
Case number

PINs Appeal number

Proposal

Address

Date
decided

Decision

Clifton

21/00046/REF

APP/C2741/W/21/3288894

Change of use of single
dwelling C3 to House in
Multiple Occupation C4 -
retrospective

52 Cromer StreetYorkYO30 6DL

05/05/22

Appeal
Allowed

Fishergate

21/00049/CON

APP/C2741/W/21/3284884

Variation of condition 2 of
permitted application
19/00603/FULM seeking
amendments to external
appearance, landscaping,
internal arrangements,
substation, refuse and cycle
stores

Frederick House Fulford Road
YorkYO10 4EG

19/05/22

Appeal
Allowed

Guildhall

21/00047/REF

APP/C2741/W/21/3284888

Change of use of car park to
the siting of self storage units

Car Park Wigginton Road York

28/04/22

Appeal
Dismissed

22/00016/REF

APP/C2741/W/22/3295282

Demolition of existing buildings
and redevelopment of the site
for purpose-built student
accommodation with up to 319
bedrooms, associated
communal facilities, car parking
and landscaping

Alton Cars York Ltd 3 James Street York
YO10 3WW

11/05/22

Appeal
Withdrawn

Haxby And
Wigginton

22/00008/REF

APP/C2741/D/22/3295014

Single storey rear extension,
new roof to existing garage,
dormer to side roofslope, and
1.6m wall/fence and gates to
front and side boundaries (part
retrospective)

47 Towthorpe Road York YO32 3LZ

24/05/22

Appeal
Dismissed

Huntington/New
Earswick

21/00048/CON

APP/C2741/W/21/3290004

Variation of condition 2 of
permitted application
20/01985/FUL to change roof
from hipped gabled on front
elevation

23 New Lane Huntington York YO32
INR

22/04/22

Appeal
Allowed

Rawcliffe And
Clifton Without

22/00007/REF

APP/C2741/D/22/3293240

Two storey side extension

2 Hendon Garth York YO30 5ZB

13/06/22

Appeal
Allowed

69 abed



Wheldrake

22/00002/REF

APP/C2741/W/22/3290687

Erection of 16.0m Phase 8
Monopole with wraparound
cabinet at base and associated
ancillary works

Grass Verge Adjacent Tennis Courts
Broad Highway Wheldrake
York

18/05/22

Appeal
Dismissed

0/ abed



Appendix B
Appeals summaries between 01/04/22 and 30/06/22

Appn number [Appeal by Description Address Outcome
21/02264/FUL |Mr David Dawson Variation of condition 2 of permitted application 20/01985/FUL to change roof from [23 New Lane Huntington York YO32 Appeal

hipped gabled on front elevation ONR Allowed
Notes

The appeal related to a proposal for a four bedroom bungalow within the rear garden of a suburban property. It shows rooms in the roof space with a
ridge height of 5.7m. Permission had been granted for a similar scheme that had a hipped rear roof. The scheme that was refused and subject to the
appeal showed the hip changed to a gable. It was considered that despite the neighbours not objecting to the scheme, the proposed buildings height
(5.7m to ridge) and length (12m) and position along much of the rear garden boundary of the adjacent property meant the hip needed to be retained to
avoid harm in respect to dominance and the established character. The Inspector allowed the appeal. He stated that the new dwellings roof form woul!

be the most visible aspect to neighbours and that this would angle away from the most impacted dwelling and the ridge would be no higher than Q
approved. He also had regard to the fact that the rear windows in the impacted house did not look straight out to the area of roof that was subject to th‘(.?3
revision. ~
|_\

Appn number Appeal by Description Address Outcome
21/02110/TCMAS|CK Hutchison Networks |Erection of 16.0m Phase 8 Monopole with wraparound cabinet at base and Grass Verge Adjacent Tennis Courts Appeal

(UK) Ltd associated ancillary works Broad Highway Wheldrake Dismissed
Notes

The appeal related to a proposal to erect a 16m telecoms mast along with associated cabinets on the verge of Broad Highway adjacent to the tennis
courts north of the built up area of Wheldrake village. The application was to assess whether the development constituted permitted development and if
so whether the siting and appearance of the proposal was acceptable. The application was refused for the following reason:Paragraph A.3.-3 of Part 16
of the General Permitted Development Order (GPDO) 2015 (as amended) requires the applicant to notify operators of aerodromes within 3km of the
application site of the proposal before making the application required by sub-paragraph (4). The applicant has not submitted any information to indicate
that this notification took place prior to submission and as such the proposal is not permitted development. Accordingly, the Local Planning Authority is
not required to determine whether the prior approval of the Authority will be required as to the siting and appearance of the development.The Inspector
dismissed the appeal stating that as the mast would be within 3km of Elvington Airfield, to comply with criteria that allows the mast to be permitted
development, notice had to be served on the operator prior to the application being submitted. Furthermore, the Inspector stated that as the application
could not be permitted development there was no purpose in assessing the acceptability of the siting and appearance of the proposal.




Case number |Appeal by Description Address Outcome

21/00933/FUL |Mr Alan Dennis Morrow [Change of use of single dwelling C3 to House in Multiple Occupation C4 - 52 Cromer Street York YO30 6DL Appeal
retrospective Allowed

Notes

Permission was refused for the retrospective change of use from C3 dwelling to C4 HMO as the street level threshold was already at 10%. The property
had been used as a HMO for 4no. occupants since 2013. The inspector noted that the neighbourhood level would remain low at 4.7% and concluded
that whilst the neighbourhood level threshold had been exceeded that the proposal had not given rise to unacceptable harm in terms of the
concentration of HMOs at street level and had not resulted in an unbalanced community overall. The inspector did not however qualify these statements
but stated that the proposal would not therefore have a harmful effect on the concentration of HMOs in the interests of mixed and balanced
communities. It is noted that at the time the planning decision was issued, this application was one of three HMO applications in Cromer Street, with all
three being taken into account when issuing the LPA decision. The inspector quoted the cumulative percentage increase at street level of 11.5% (being
the scenario if all the applications were approved) and based his decision on this higher percentage figure.

Case number |Appeal by Description Address Outcome
20/02076/FUL |Graham And Deirdre Change of use of car park to the siting of self storage units Car Park Wigginton Road York Appeal
Kennedy Dismissed g
Notes «Q
D

The application was for the change of use of a car park for the siting of self-storage units. As part of the proposal, an alternative pedestrian access was —
proposed around the perimeter of the site, passing between the storage units and the security fencing alongside the railway line. The application was N
refused on four grounds: the development was considered out of character with the area; insufficient information submitted regarding the floodlighting
and impact to residential amenity, ecology etc and the impact of any potential mitigation measures that may be required; insufficient information to
properly assess the noise impacts and the impact of any potential mitigation measures that may be required; and the proposal had not made adequate
arrangements to reduce crime and the fear of crime to ensure public safety and security with particular regard to the unlit path running between the
palisade facing of the railway line and the storage containers.

The Inspector agreed that the proposal would harm the character and appearance of the area, but considered that the issues regarding noise, lighting,
and ecology could be addressed by conditions. The Planning Inspector considered that the proposal would increase the fear of crime along the path,
however they considered that lighting and CCTV could be sought via condition. They acknowledged that the proposal would result in modest economic
benefits, however, this did not outweigh effect on the character and appearance of the area.




Case number |Appeal by Description Address Outcome

21/00116/FUL |Laura Pennington Variation of condition 2 of permitted application 19/00603/FULM seeking Frederick House Fulford RoadYorkYO10 [Appeal
amendments to external appearance, landscaping, internal arrangements, 4EG Allowed
substation, refuse and cycle stores

Notes

The application related to a variation of condition 2 of permitted application 19/00603/FULM, seeking amendments to the external appearance,
landscaping, internal arrangements, substation, and refuse and cycle stores in respect of the erection of 6no. purpose-built 4 storey student
accommodation buildings. The proposal included an increase in the heights of blocks E, F and G. The maximum additional height for block E was 25mm
at the ridge, although it was proposed to raise the eaves by 205mm. The maximum additional height for block E was 25mm at the ridge, although it was
proposed to raise the eaves by 205mm. The maximum additional height for block F was 300mm at the ridge, and for block G 315mm at the ridge.
Planning permission was refused at Planning Committee on the grounds that the proposed increase in height was considered to cause an unacceptable
impact on the neighbouring properties at Kilburn Road due to the degree of overshadowing and loss of outlook which would harm their residential
amenity. The Inspector noted that the separation distances of blocks E, F and G from the houses on Kilburn Road are 36 metres, 43 metres and 42
metres respectively. The Daylight, Sunlight and Overshadowing Assessment submitted with the application found that none of the houses on Kilburn
Road lay within the extent of potential significant effect in terms of daylight, sunlight or overshadowing and that the proposal would comply with industry
standard BRE guidelines. Turning to any loss of outlook, the Inspector noted that the increase in height is relatively modest when compared to the scale
of the development which already has planning permission. In addition, the blocks are a substantial distance from the rear of the properties on Kilburn

Road. He concluded that the proposed increased block heights would not have an unacceptable effect on the living conditions of occupiers of propertie T
on Kilburn Road with specific regard to overshadowing and loss of outlook. The appeal was allowed. g
D
\l
Case number [Appeal by Description Address Outcome w
21/02103/FUL |Mr Vernon Janes Two storey side extension 2 Hendon Garth York YO30 5ZB Appeal
Allowed
Notes

The scheme proposed a 2 storey side extension to a detached property, The house is located in a prominent corner plot being clearly visible from a
number of streets and only having a minor off set from the surrounding boundaries. The extension was refused due to the impact on the visual amenity
on the street scene. Given size of the extension and its location on top of this boundary the works would constitute a large overbearing and imposing
development, eroding the space between the house its side boundary and the adjacent highway. Further to this there was a lack of subservience
leading to a detrimental impact upon the house and street scene. The inspector put limited weight on the SPD policies as they were not adopted and
had not yet been through examination. In their examination the inspector did not agree with the council’s decision that the development was overbearing
and unduly large. It was noted that the development was not set down or set back however given its small size the inspector concluded this would not
cause a substantial harm. For the reasons outlined above the inspector did not think that the development would harm the street scene or be in conflict
with policies and granted the appeal.




Case number |Appeal by Description Address Outcome

21/02639/FUL |Mr And Mrs Bodden Single storey rear extension, new roof to existing garage, dormer to side 47 Towthorpe Road York YO32 3LZ Appeal
roofslope, and 1.6m wall/fence and gates to front and side boundaries (part Dismissed
retrospective)

Notes

The application property is a detached dwelling, located on the main road leading out from Haxby towards Towthorpe. The residential properties are set
well back from the highway. The proposal was for extensions to the rear as well as a front boundary wall. The Inspector noted that the character of front
boundary treatments in this locality was predominantly hedges or low brick walls with hedges above. He noted that the applicant wished to build a front

boundary wall to protect the safety of his children and whilst sympathising with this, he did not consider it was a material planning consideration. He

considered that a wide, high expanse of brick boundary wall and brick pillars, in an otherwise verdant street-scene would be visually incongruous and

would not reflect the character of the local area. For this reason he dismissed the appeal.

) abed



Appendix C
Outstanding Appeals at 31 January 2023

Ward Appeal Case Appeal number Proposal Address Date appeal
number lodged

Dringhouses 22/00043/REF APP/C2741/W/22/3308123|Outline application for 1no. dwelling with  |Land Adjacent Electricity Sub 03/10/22
And associated garden and 1no. parking Station Eason View York
Woodthorpe spaces, with only access being

considered
Fulford And 22/00052/REF APP/C2741/D/22/3311762 |Alteration of attached garage to habitable |23 Fordlands RoadYorkYO19 02/12/22
Heslington room including addition of mono-pitched |4QG

roof.
Guildhall 22/00040/REF APP/C2741/W/[22/3304727|Third floor roof extension to form 1no. Barry Crux20 CastlegateYorkYO1 [08/08/22

apartment with balcony and dormers to 9RP
front and rear, alterations to first and
second floors in association with change
of use from office (use class B1) to
residential (use class C3) to form 2no.
apartments

22/00041/REF APP/C2741/Y/22/3304726 |Internal and external alterations including |Barry Crux20 CastlegateYorkYO1 |08/08/22
third floor extension to roof to form 1 no. |9RP
apartment with balcony and dormers to
front and rear, alterations to first and
second floors in association with change
of use from office to residential to form 2
no. apartments

G) abed

Haxby And 22/00044/REF APP/C2741/X/22/3311380 |Certificate of lawfulness for proposed use |Part OS Field 1882Usher Lane 17/11/22
Wigginton of land as car park to serve allotments Haxby York

22/00053/REF APP/C2741/W/22/3311678|Use of land for a self-storage use with the |Site Lying To The North Of Clifton |22/11/22
siting of containers in connection with this |Gate Business Park Wigginton

use (retrospective) Road Wigginton York
Heworth 22/00029/REF APP/C2741/X/22/3303954 |Certificate of lawfulness for use of building |20B Asquith AvenueYorkYO31 26/07/22
as a dwelling within Use Class C3 0Pz
22/00039/REF APP/C2741/W/22/3306060|Variation of conditions 3 only of 3 Malham GroveYorkYO31 0QG |30/08/22

application 21/01923/FUL to alter
permitted opening times of hair salon from
09:00 hours to 16:00 hours to 09:00 hours
to 18:00 hours Monday to Friday and not




at all on Saturdays, Sundays and Bank
Holidays.

Huntington/New |21/00032/NON APP/C2741/W/21/3282598|0utline planning permission with all Huntington South Moor New Lane [09/09/21
Earswick matters reserved except access, for circa [Huntington York

300 residential dwellings, associated

landscaping, public open space, and the

formation of two new vehicle accesses

from New Lane
Osbaldwick And |22/00050/REF APP/C2741/W/[22/3305435|Erection of 8no. dwellings with associated |The Magnet 57 Osbaldwick 18/08/22
Derwent parking and landscaping following LaneYorkYO10 3AY

demolition of buildings
Rawcliffe And  [22/00005/REF APP/C2741/D/22/3293412 | Two storey extension to side and rear with |9 Holyrood DriveYorkYO30 5WB |21/02/22
Clifton Without canopy porch to front (revised scheme,

resubmission)

22/00049/REF APP/C2741/D/22/3308603 |Excavation and repurposing of existing 25 Shipton RoadCliftonYorkYO30 [10/10/22

basement to create habitable area

5RE

Rural West York

22/00014/REFCPD

APP/C2741/X/22/3297054

Certificate of lawfulness of proposed
development comprising: removal of
existing railway carriage; erection of
workshop/wood store, potting shed and
boundary fencing; and construction of
swimming pool

Cherry Tree Cottage Millfield Lane
Nether PoppletonYorkYO26 6NX

14/04/22

22/00030/REF APP/C2741/X/22/3304438 |Erection of a detached pool house and Village Farm Bungalow Main 15/02/22
gym with associated plant room Street Askham RichardYorkYO23
3NY
Strensall 22/00042/REF APP/C2741/D/22/3304581 |Single storey rear and side extension, 6 The VillageStrensallYorkYO32 (17/11/22
change window colour throughout 5XS
22/00045/REF APP/C2741/W/22/3307755|Removal of condition 4 of permitted Hall Farm Strensall 27/09/22
application 18/01979/FUL to allow use of |RoadYorkYO32 9SW
caravans by persons not engaged in
equestrian based holidays
22/00046/REF APP/C2741/W/[22/3308426|Change of use from public house to cafe |Four Alls Inn Malton Road 06/10/22
with drive-thru coffee shop and first floor |Stockton On The Forest York
offices (Use Classes A3/B1) and change [YO32 9TW
of use of detached garage to retail (A1)
Westfield 22/00048/REF APP/C2741/D/22/3312014 |Single storey rear extension and hip to 45 Queenswood GroveYorkYO24 |27/11/22
gable with dormer to rear 4PW
22/00051/REF APP/C2741/D/22/3307230 |Single storey extension to side of existing |38 Tennent RoadYorkYO24 3HF [19/09/22

detached garage

9/ abed



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	4a J H Shouksmith And Sons Ltd Murton Way York YO19 5GS [22/00015/FULM]
	Shouksmith Site Plan  [22/00015/FULM]
	Shouksmith Committee Presentation [22/00015/FULM]

	5 Planning Appeal Performance and Decisions
	Appendix A- Appeal decisions 010422 to 300622
	Appendix B - Appeal summaries 010422 to 300622
	Appendix C - Appeals outstanding 31 01 2023


